
City of Edgerton Regular Meeting Minutes 
April 13, 2017 

Page 1 

City of Edgerton, Kansas 
Minutes of City Council Regular Session 

April 13, 2017 
 
 A Regular Session of the City Council was held in the Edgerton City Hall, 404 E. Nelson Edgerton, 

Kansas on April 13, 2017.  The meeting convened at 7:00 p.m. with Mayor Roberts presiding. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

Clay Longanecker  present 
Darius Crist  present 
Jody Brown  present 
Ron Conus   present 
 
Cindy Crooks  absent 
 
With a quorum present, the meeting commenced. 

 
Staff in attendance: City Administrator Beth Linn 
    Community Development Director Kenneth Cook 
    City Attorney Patrick Reavey  

Public Works Superintendent Trey Whitaker 
          

2.  WELCOME  
         
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA  
 
4.  Agenda Approval was considered  
5. Minutes of February 9, 2017 were considered 
6. Minutes of February 23, 2017 were considered 
7. Minutes for March 9, 2017 were considered 
8. Minutes for March 23, 2017 were considered 
 
Motion by Brown, seconded by Crist, to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 None 
  
10. DECLARATION 
 
 None 
 



City of Edgerton Regular Meeting Minutes 
April 13, 2017 

Page 2 
11. PRESENTATION BY JOHNSON COUNTY CERT 
 
 City Administrator Beth Linn introduced Johnson County Fire District 1 Captain Aaron Winkler and 

Justin Delong with Johnson County CERT. Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) educates 
citizens about disaster preparedness. CERT also trains citizens in basic disaster response skills. 
Johnson County Community Emergency Response Team is requesting a donation of $1000.00.  Fire 
Chief Rob Kirk was present and gave some background information about the fire station in 
Edgerton.  The Edgerton station used to only staff one person, two years ago that increased to two 
people.  At the present time, we have three fire fighters stationed in Edgerton. Chief Kirk informed 
all present they still have a volunteer program that has continued for the last twenty five years.  He 
noted the volunteers are very valuable to our community. 

 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Crist, to approve the request for donation of $1000.00. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 The Council took a short break for pictures with the CERT volunteers and the Johnson County Fire 

District Personal. 
 
 
BUSINESS REQUIRING ACTION 
 
 CLARIFY OWNERSHIP OF MUSEUM 
12. ACTION TO CLARIFY OWNERSHIP OF THE EDGERTON COMMUNITY MUSEUM STRUCTURE WAS 

CONSIDERED. 
        
 Beth Linn, City Administrator, presented information about the Edgerton Community Museum 

Structure at 406 E. Nelson.  It was previously understood by both the City of Edgerton and the 
Edgerton Historic Society that the ground and the structure at 406 E. Nelson were owned by the City 
of Edgerton. Based on recent research by EHS members, the ownership of the structure has come 
into question. It seems unclear whether the structure was originally deeded from the previous 
owner to the City of Edgerton or EHS. Mary Pritchard, on behalf of EHS, confirmed the desire for the 
City to own the structure. The City of Edgerton owns the ground at 406 E. Nelson. 

 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Crist, to approve Patrick Reavey to prepare a quit claim deed 

to clarify that the City of Edgerton owns the structure at 406 E. Nelson.  
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
 2016 AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
13. THE 2016 AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS PRESENTED BY VARNEY & ASSOCIATES WAS 

CONSIDERED 
 
 City Administrator Beth Linn introduced April Swartz a representative from Varney & Associates, 

who presented the 2016 Audit of Financial Statements to the City Council.   Mayor and Council were 
presented with an unqualified audit and informed that the audit letter forthcoming will have no 
management comments. April commended the staff for preparation done for completion of the 



City of Edgerton Regular Meeting Minutes 
April 13, 2017 

Page 3 
audit.  Beth Linn thanked April and Varney & Associates for conducting the audit.  Ms. 
 Linn also thanked all staff members that assisted with the audit.  

 
 Motion by Brown, seconded by Longanecker, to accept the 2016 Audit of Financial Statements.  
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0. 
 
14.  REPORT BY THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 Ms. Linn reported that District Court Judge has ruled in favor of the City of Edgerton to find it 

necessary to acquire the remaining five easements for construction of the sidewalk as legal use of 
eminent domain. The appraisers for valuation of those easements have been appointed and have 
forty-five days to complete that process. The public bid opening will be held on April 20th, 2017 at 
9:00 am.  Eight contractors attended the pre-bid meeting.  Award of the construction contract will 
be considered by City Council on the 27th of April. Substantial project completion date expected for 
August 1, 2017. 

 
 Next is a report on previous resident concerns regarding a desire for street maintenance within the 

residential portion of Edgerton. This type of street maintenance is considered annually during the 
capital improvement work session scheduled for April 20th at 7:00 PM. The second resident raised 
concern regarding the JB Hunt property, particularly disposal of trash and stormwater runoff. Staff 
has been in contact with JB Hunt. Some clean up has occurred with regard to trash disposal. Kenny 
Cook, Community Development Director, David Hamby, City Engineer, and the Engineer for JB Hunt 
are working on a solution to the problems at JB Hunt.  Staff will require JB Hunt to submit a schedule 
and remind them of the requirements of their operation due to being a conditional use permit. 

 
 The three-party agreement for LPKC allows 207th Street Grade Separation to begin design in 2017.  

Staff expects to release a Request for Qualifications for Design Engineer within the next 60 days. 
This project will be constructed using traditional design-bid-build method.  

 
 The 2018 budget calendar may need to be updated, will keep everyone posted. 
 
 The new Assistant City Administrator Scott Peterson starts on Monday. 
 
15. REPORT BY THE MAYOR 
 
 None 
 
13. FUTURE MEETINGS/EVENT REMINDERS 

 April 19th Noon – Senior Lunch 
 April 20th 7:00 PM – City Council Work Session:2018 Budget 
 April 27th 7:00 PM – City Council Meeting 
 May 4th – Gardner Edgerton Chamber of Commerce Annual Dinner 
 May 11th 7:00 PM – City Council Meeting 
 May 25th 7:00 PN – City Council Meeting 

 
15. ADJOURN 



City of Edgerton Regular Meeting Minutes 
April 13, 2017 

Page 4 
 
 Motion by Brown, seconded by Crist, to adjourn the meeting. 
 
 Motion was approved, 4-0.  Meeting adjourned at 7:48 p.m. 
  
_______________________________________________ 
Janeice L. Rawles 
City Clerk 
 
 
Approved by the Governing Body on 





































































































































AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consider Application FP2016-04, Final Plat, Midwest Gateway  

 

Department:  Community Development 

 

Background/Description of Item: The City of Edgerton has received Application FP2016-04 for final plat 
of the Midwest Gateway and which is located on the North side of 191st Street and a quarter mile East of 
Homestead Lane. The final plat includes approximately 32 acres and is made up of a Two lots.  The Plat 
does not contain the dedication of additional public street ROW as 191st Street ROW was previously 
acquired.  The Plat does include the dedication of certain easements required as part of the development 
of the property.  This plat was recently remanded back to the Planning Commission upon the request of 
the applicant in order to allow for changes to be made to the Final Plat. 
  
Staff, including City Engineer, has reviewed the Final Plat submittal for compliance with the Approved 
Preliminary Plat and requirements in Section 13.3 of Article 13 of the Edgerton UDC. Review comments 
are detailed in the attached staff report.  
 
The Edgerton Planning Commission reviewed the application on April 14, 2017. The Planning Commission 
recommended approval of Application FP2016-04 for Final Plat of Midwest Gateway subject to compliance 
with the following stipulations as listed in the staff report: 
1. All Final Plat requirements of the City listed above shall be met or addressed prior to recording of the Plat. 
2. The commencement of any improvements shall not occur prior to the approval and endorsement of the final 

plat and the submittal to and approval of construction plans for all streets, sidewalks, storm water sewers, 
sanitary sewers, and water mains contained within the final plat by the Governing Body. Sanitary sewer 
drawings and specifications must be submitted to and approved by the City of Edgerton and Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment prior to the commencement of any improvements.   

3. A Public Improvement Inspection Fee, established by the Fee Schedule for the Unified Development Code, 
shall be submitted with the document of financial assurance as defined in Section 13.7 prior to the 
commencement of any improvements. 

4. The applicant shall meet all requirements of Recording a Final Plat as defined in Section 13.5 of the 
Edgerton Unified Development Code, including payment of excise tax. 

5. The applicant shall meet all requirements of Financial Assurances as defined in Section 13.7 of the Edgerton 
Unified Development Code. 

 
Enclosure:  Staff Report from April 14, 2017 Planning Commission meeting 

 Final Plat          
            Final Plat Application FP2016-04 for Midwest Gateway 

 

Recommendation: Approve Application FP2016-04, Final Plat, Midwest Gateway located on the North 
side of 191st Street and a quarter mile East of Homestead Lane. 

 

Funding Source: N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Kenneth Cook, Community Development Director 
Date: April 24, 2017 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
STAFF REPORT SUMMARY 

 
January 6, 2017 
 
To: Edgerton Planning Commission 
Fr: Kenneth Cook, AICP, CFM, Community Development Director 
Re: FP2016-04, Final Plat for Midwest Gateway, located on the North side of 191st Street 

and 1,500 feet West of Kill Creek Road. 
 
REQUEST 
The applicant is seeking approval of a Final Plat based on an approved preliminary site plan, 
preliminary plat and the L-P, Logistics Park District zoning requirements.   This project is 
located to the West of the original LPKC development and directly South of the BNSF 
Intermodal facility.  The proposal includes a two lots with 301,603 and 186,107 square foot 
warehouses. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission review the below summary of items to note areas 
that may need consideration by the Planning Commission. Other items noted in the Staff 
Report shall be addressed by applicant in revised submittal, but do not appear to be items in 
need of discussion by the Planning Commission. 
1. Cross access easements for vehicular and pedestrian traffic need to be provided across lot 

2 in order to provide access to lot 1. 
2. Show a drainage easement for the detention pond. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City staff recommends approval of FP2016-04 for the Final Plat, Midwest Gateway subject to 
the suggested stipulations, below. 

1. The plat is configured such that Lot 1 and Tract A have no frontage on public 
right-of-way (191st Street). Only lot 2 has frontage along 191st Street. General 
design standards outlined in city ordinances provide that all lots must “front on 
public right-of-way”, however city ordinances also provide “the Zoning 
Administrator my grant a waiver from this requirement and allow permanent 
travel easement when appropriate”. In this instance city staff is willing to 
waive the frontage requirement only if a cross access easement that includes 
both vehicular and pedestrian traffic can be established.           

2. All Final Plat requirements of the City listed above shall be met or addressed 
prior to recording of the Plat. 

3. The commencement of any improvements shall not occur prior to the approval 
and endorsement of the final plat and the submittal to and approval of 
construction plans for all streets, sidewalks, storm water sewers, sanitary 
sewers, and water mains contained within the final plat by the Governing 
Body.  



Page 2 of 2 
 

4. Sanitary sewer drawings and specifications must be submitted to and 
approved by the City of Edgerton and Kansas Department of Health and 
Environment prior to the commencement of any improvements. 

5. A Public Improvement Inspection Fee, established by the Fee Schedule for the 
Unified Development Code, shall be submitted with the document of financial 
assurance as defined in Section 13.7 prior to the commencement of any 
improvements. 

6. The applicant shall meet all requirements of Recording a Final Plat as defined 
in Section 13.5 of the Edgerton Unified Development Code, including payment 
of excise tax. 

7. The applicant shall meet all requirements of Financial Assurances as defined in 
Section 13.7 of the Edgerton Unified Development Code. 

 



 

FP 2016-04  Midwest Gateway Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
April 7, 2017 
 
To: Edgerton Planning Commission 
Fr: Kenneth Cook, AICP, CFM, Community Development Director 
Re: Application FP2016-04 for Final Plat for Midwest Gateway, located north side of 191st 

Street and one-quarter mile east of Homestead Road. 
 
APPLICATION INFORMATION 

Applicant/Property Owner:  Aaron Schlagel, Midwest Gateway Venture, LLC 
Keith Copaken, Midwest Gateway Venture, LLC 

 
Requested Action: Final Plat – Midwest Gateway  
 
Legal Description: Part of the SW 1/4, Section 34, Township 14 

South, Range 22 East in the City of Edgerton, 
Johnson County, Kansas. See attached final plat 
for full legal description. 

 
Site Address/Location: North side of 191st Street and 1,500 feet West of 

Kill Creek Road.   
 
Existing Zoning and Land Uses: City of Edgerton L-P (Logistics Park) zoning on 

vacant land. 
 
Existing Improvements: None. 
 
Site Size: Lot 1 is 15.57 acres, Lot 2 is 11.065 acres and 

Tract A is 4.504 acres, Total 32.445 Acres. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The applicant is seeking approval of a final plat based on an approved preliminary and the L-P, 
Logistics Park District zoning requirements.  The initial, two lot, Preliminary Plat was approved 
November 12, 2013.  The currently valid, one lot, Preliminary Plat was approved December 
17, 2015, and received a one year extension in 2016. The planning commission did approve a 
1 lot final plat which was forwarded to the city council for their consideration. However, the 
applicant requested the city council remand the application back to the planning commission 
to accommodate a new, two (2) lot layout. That application is now before you. While this lot is 
located adjacent to the intermodal facility, it is not considered part of Logistics Park Kansas 
City. The subject property is located on the North side of 191st Street and approximately a 
quarter mile East of Homestead Lane and is zoned L-P, Logistics Park. The City’s Unified 
Development Code (UDC) defines this district as a limited multimodal industrial zone created 
to support activities related to truck, rail and other transport services.   



Page 2 of 4 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES 
Infrastructure was reviewed previously per the rezoning and preliminary plat. Some conditions 
continue to exist as noted below. 

a. 191st Street has been constructed as a heavy haul corridor. It is a 40 foot wide, two-
lane road, constructed with 14-inch thick concrete surface.  191st Street will require 
upgrades in the future as development occurs in the area which could include the 
construction of additional travel lanes and sidewalks. The funding for these 
improvements will be made as part of a tri-party agreement regarding the 
development of Logistics Park Kansas City (LPKC). The City has typically required 
adjacent property owners that are not part of LPKC to sign agreements not to protest 
the formation of a benefit district that would also be used to fund these improvements.  

b. The property is located within the Big Bull Creek watershed, which flows south from 
167th Street to the southern edge of the county at Homestead Lane. 

c. The property is located within an area identified as Zone X and is defined as Areas 
determined to be outside the 500-year flood elevation. No base Flood Elevations have 
been determined.  

d. The property has access to sanitary sewer service.  A gravity sewer line is located on 
the South side of 191st Street across from the Southwest corner of the site.  This line 
flows into the pump station that is located at the Southeast corner of 191st and 
Homestead Lane.  Another lift station is located at the Northeast corner of the site and 
another at the southwest corner of the site. 

e. The property is located within the service area of Rural Water District No. 7.  The new 
water tower for Water 7 is located on Lot 3 of the first plat of the Logistics Park Kansas 
City Phase IV. A 12-inch water main is located along the 191st Street property frontage. 

f. Police protection is provided by the Johnson County Sheriff's Department under 
contract with the City of Edgerton. Fire protection is provided by Johnson County Fire 
District No. 1.  A fire station is located in the City of Edgerton approximately 3.5 miles 
to the west, and one approximately 2.5 miles to the northeast in the City of Gardner. 

 
FINAL PLAT REVIEW 
Staff has reviewed the Final Plat submittal for compliance with the Approved Preliminary 
Plat and requirements in Section 13.3 of Article 13 of the Edgerton UDC. Review 
comments are listed below. 
1.  Scale, the same used for the preliminary plat; North point; vicinity map. The same 

scale is being used for the Final Plat as the Preliminary Plat. Final P lat Complies. 
2.  The words "FINAL PLAT" followed by the name of the subdivision at the top of the 

sheet, and then followed by a metes and bounds description of the tract. Final P lat 
Complies 

3.  The instrument of survey which shows the point of beginning, corners, bearings, 
courses, distances, exterior boundaries, interior lot boundaries, abandoned lot lines, 
pins, and monuments found or set. All P.I.’s corners, boundaries must be 
monumented with a 2" x 24" metal bar. Final P lat Complies. 

a) The plat currently shows all monuments being ½” x 24” Rebar while the 
regulations require 2” x 24” metal bar. Staff believes that the 2” measurement is 
a typographical error and that it should be ½”. 

b) Show the basis of bearing on the graphic part of the plat. 
c) Show names or recording data for the adjacent unplatted parcels. 



Page 3 of 4 
 

4.  A boundary survey of third order surveying accuracy (maximum closure error one in five 
thousand (1' in 5,000), with bearings and distances referenced to section or fractional 
section corners or other base line shown on the plat and readily reproducible on the 
ground. Information depicted. Final P lat Complies. 

5.  Individual notations and a table showing: lot and tract areas, setbacks, and building 
envelopes. Final P lat Complies.  

6.  A number for each lot, starting (if practical) in the northwest corner. Final P lat 
Complies. 

7.  All easements with widths, and roads with curve data. A drainage easement shall be 
provided for the detention pond and conveyance system. Update Final P lat. 

8.  Ingress/egress limitations if required. The easement providing ingress and egress is not 
shown. This information must be shown and declared. Update Final P lat. 

9.  The location of existing utility easements. Final P lat Complies. 
10. A written legal description from the survey. Final P lat Complies.  
11. An instrument of dedication for all roads and easements. The Final Plat includes 

language for the dedication of right-of-way (streets) and other types of similar rights-of-
way including utility easements. Final Plat Complies.   

12. Special notations required as a condition of platting by the Planning Commission. Final 
P lat Complies.  

13. Approved phases – clearly delineated. Not applicable. Final P lat Complies.  
14. Private travel easements. While an existing driveway easement is shown on the plat, 

additional cross access easements including pedestrian access (east and west sides of 
the site) shall be provided and shown. Update Final P lat. 

15. The Owner's Certificate with Notary Seal. Final P lat Complies. 
16. Certificate of the Governing Body with City Clerk's attest and Seal. Final P lat Complies. 
17. Edgerton City Planning Commission Chair and Secretary approval. Final P lat Complies. 
18. Certificate of the Register of Deeds. Register of Deeds utilizes their own stamp and 

requires space to be reserved in the top left corner to accommodate it. No additional 
certificate is required. Final P lat Complies.  

19. Surveyor's Certificate and Seal and certificate for survey review by the County Surveyor 
or designated Land Surveyor. County Surveyor utilizes their own stamp, therefore no 
other certificate is required. Final P lat Complies. 

20. Certificate of the Zoning Administrator. Final P lat Complies.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City staff recommends approval of FP2016-04 for the Final Plat, Midwest Gateway, 
subject to compliance with the following stipulations: 

1. The plat is configured such that Lot 1 and Tract A have no frontage on public 
right-of-way (191st Street). Only lot 2 has frontage along 191st Street. General 
design standards outlined in city ordinances provide that all lots must “front on 
public right-of-way”, however city ordinances also provide “the Zoning 
Administrator my grant a waiver from this requirement and allow permanent 
travel easement when appropriate”. In this instance city staff is willing to 
waive the frontage requirement only if a cross access easement that includes 
both vehicular and pedestrian traffic can be established.           

2. All Final Plat requirements of the City listed above shall be met or addressed 
prior to recording of the Plat. 

3. The commencement of any improvements shall not occur prior to the approval 
and endorsement of the final plat and the submittal to and approval of 



Page 4 of 4 
 

construction plans for all streets, sidewalks, storm water sewers, sanitary 
sewers, and water mains contained within the final plat by the Governing 
Body.  

4. Sanitary sewer drawings and specifications must be submitted to and 
approved by the City of Edgerton and Kansas Department of Health and 
Environment prior to the commencement of any improvements. 

5. A Public Improvement Inspection Fee, established by the Fee Schedule for the 
Unified Development Code, shall be submitted with the document of financial 
assurance as defined in Section 13.7 prior to the commencement of any 
improvements. 

6. The applicant shall meet all requirements of Recording a Final Plat as defined 
in Section 13.5 of the Edgerton Unified Development Code, including payment 
of excise tax. 

7. The applicant shall meet all requirements of Financial Assurances as defined in 
Section 13.7 of the Edgerton Unified Development Code. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
Application FP2016-04 
Final Plat Midwest Gateway 

 
 

 
 



W. 191st Street

LOT 2

LOT 1

TRACT A

W. 191st Street

Lot Area Front
Setback

Side
Setback

Rear
Setback

Building
Envelope

2 482,012 Sq. Ft.
11.065 Acres 50 25 411,701 Sq. Ft.

9.451 Acres

1 678,279 Sq. Ft.
15.571 Acres 25 639,326 Sq. Ft.

14.677 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
N53°52'24"E - 1140.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Southerly line of the Property Retained by the BNSF Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°16'29"E(M) - 1,813.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
West Line of the NW   of the SE  , Sec.34,T.14S.,R.22E.14 of the SE  , Sec.34,T.14S.,R.22E.14, Sec.34,T.14S.,R.22E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
East Line of the SW  , Sec.34,T.14S.,R.22E.14, Sec.34,T.14S.,R.22E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Easement Granted to the City of Edgerton and Gardner, Book 201210, Page 000188

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Line of the SW 1/4, Sec.34,T.14S.,R.22E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' Permanent Right-of-way  Book 201111 at Page 006124

AutoCAD SHX Text
Southeast corner of the J.A. Pearce Tract as described in the 1892 Resurvey of Sec.34,T.14S.,R.22E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
360.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88%%D10'27"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5.46 CHAINS FROM 1892 RESURVEY HELD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 1/2" Rebar w/SKW Cap at Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text
N02°16'29"W-1170.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Easement Granted to the City of Edgerton and Gardner Book 201210, Page 000188

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Line of the J.A. Pearce Tract of the 1892 Re-Survey of Township 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
947.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
True Point of Beginning

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°10'27"W 947.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
S02°16'32"E(D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
  15' Water line Easement Book 5135, Page 1 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 1/2" Rebar w/SKW Cap at Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 1/2" Rebar w/SKW Cap at Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing 1/2" Rebar w/SKW Cap at Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text
Driveway Easement Book 201312, Page 001927

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' Sanitary Sewer Easement 201312, Page 001926 to be released by this plat

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOGISTICS PARK KANSAS CITY,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
East line of the J.A. Pearce Tract of the 1892 Re-Survey of Township 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
Point of Commencing  SE corner, SW 1/4, SEC. 34-14-22, Existing 3 1/4"  Brass monument in monument box

AutoCAD SHX Text
920.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
727.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
605.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1643.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S53°51'30"W 37.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2°16'29"E 39.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.01' N87°43'31"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2°16'29"E-1568.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S55°27'56"W-434.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
101.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
482,012 Sq. Ft. / 11.065 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
  15' Sanitary Sewer Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
Book 201401, Page 003173

AutoCAD SHX Text
Book 200701, Page 000223

AutoCAD SHX Text
Book 201304, Page 009267

AutoCAD SHX Text
  15' Sanitary Sewer Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
219.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
505.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
512.49'

AutoCAD SHX Text
513.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°43'26"E-947.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°43'26"E-764.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
678,279 Sq. Ft. / 15.571 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
196,181 Sq. Ft. / 4.504 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' Sanitary Sewer Easement 201312, Page 001926 to be released by this plat

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87°43'26"W-530.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2°48'48"W-348.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2°29'13"W-223.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2°15'59"E-605.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N2°16'29"W-511.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
  10' Waterline Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
1327.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88%%D10'27"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Homestead Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW Corner of the SW 1/4, Sec.34,T.14S.,R.22E. Existing 3 1/4" Brass monument in monument box

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' Permanent Right-of-way  Book 201111 at Page 006124

AutoCAD SHX Text
947.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.76' S88°47'53"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°54'22"W-99.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°08'45"W-94.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87°25'05"W-122.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°45'46"W-118.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°29'52"W-103.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S85°35'15"W-89.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°01'22"W-124.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°38'19"W-158.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°35'36"E-145.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°25'22"E-86.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°30'20"E-206.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°56'38"E-193.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°48'35"E-56.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N86°55'28"E-62.49'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N87°36'09"E-61.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°58'07"E-119.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°53'11"E 14.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°58'07"W-129.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87°36'07"W-62.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S86°55'28"W-62.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°48'35"W-56.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87°56'38"W-193.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87°30'20"W-206.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°25'22"W-86.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S87°35'36"W-145.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.86'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.72'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S53°51'30"W 37.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S2°16'29"E 39.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.01' N87°43'31"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNERS CERTIFICATION AND DEDICATION: The undersigned proprietors of the above described tract of land have caused the same to be subdivided in the manner as shown on the accompanying plat, which subdivision and plat shall hereafter be known as “MIDWEST GATEWAY' The undersigned proprietors of said property shown on this plat do hereby dedicate for public use and public ways and thoroughfares, all parcels and parts of land indicated on said plat as streets, terraces, places, roads drives, lanes, parkways, avenues and alleys not heretofore dedicated. Where prior easement rights have been granted to any person, utility or corporation on said parts of the  land so dedicated, and any pipes, lines, poles and wire, conduits, ducts or cables heretofore installed thereupon and therein are required to be relocated, in accordance with proposed improvements as now set forth, the undersigned proprietor hereby absolves and agrees to indemnify the City of Edgerton, Kansas, from any expense incident to the relocation of any such existing utility installations within said prior easement. An easement or license to enter upon, locate, construct, use and maintain or authorize the location, construction or maintenance and use of sewer pipes, sewer structures and similar facilities, upon, over and under these areas outlined and designated on this plat as “Sanitary Sewer Easement" or “SS/E" is hereby granted to the City of Edgerton, Kansas with subordinate use of the same by other governmental entities and public utilities as may be authorized by state law to use such easement for said purposes. Sanitary sewer easements shall be kept clear of obstructions that impair the strength or interfere with the use and/or maintenance of sanitary sewer facilities.  An easement or license to enter upon, locate, construct, use and maintain or authorize the location, construction, maintenance or use of conduits, surface drainage facilities, subsurface drainage facilities, and similar facilities, upon, over, under and through those areas outlined and designated on this plat as "Drainage Easement" or "D/E" is hereby granted to the Cit of Edgerton, Kansas.  Drainage easements shall be kept clear of obstructions that impair the strength or interfere with the use and/or maintenance of storm drainage facilities. An easement or license to enter upon, locate, construct, use and maintain or authorize the location, construction or maintenance and use of conduits, pipes, water and similar facilities, upon, over and under these areas outlined and designated on this plat as “Water line Easement" is hereby granted to Water District No 7. The undersigned proprietor of the above described land hereby consents and agrees that the governing body of any special assessment district shall have the power to release such land proposed to be dedicated for streets and roads, or parts thereof, for public use, from the lien and effect of any special assessments, and that the amount of the unpaid special assessments on such land dedicated, shall become and remain a lien on the remainder of this land fronting or abutting on such dedicated road or street.  A blanket cross access easement is hereby dedicated over walkways, driveways and parking areas for vehicular and pedestrian access across all lots on this plat. Each owner shall be responsible for the maintenance of said walkways, driveways, parking areas and improvements located on each owners property. Tract A, as shown hereon, is to be used for storm water drainage and detention facilities and shall be maintained by the owners of the lots, tracts, and parcels shown within this plat.  Pursuant to K.S.A. 12-512b, the Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement in Book 201312, Page 001926 located within the limits of this plat is hereby vacated. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: All that part of a tract of land described as the J.A. Pearce Tract in the Southwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 14 South, Range 22 East as said tract is shown and described in the 1892 Re-Survey of said Section Township and Range, Johnson County, Kansas, said tract of land being more particularly described as follows:  Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 34; thence S 88° 10' 27" W, along the South line of said Southwest Quarter, a distance of 360.36 feet, to the true point of beginning of subject tract; thence continuing S 88° 10' 27" W, along said South line, a distance of 947.45 feet, thence N 02° 16' 29" W, parallel with the East line of said J.A. Pearce Tract, a distance of 1170.31 feet; thence N 53° 52' 24" E, a distance of 1140.81 feet, to a point on the East line of said J.A. Pearce Tract; thence S 02° 16' 29" E (S 02° 16' 32" E, Deed), along the East line of said J.A. Pearce Tract, a distance of 1813.21 feet, to the true point of beginning.The above described tract contains 1,413,318 square feet or 32.445 acres more or less. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE : 1"=  

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
General Notes: Plat corner monuments are as noted. Basis of Bearing: Bearings shown hereon are in accordance with the State Plane Coordinate System, Kansas North Zone, NAD83 CAF: 0.999943479 The error of closure exceeds 1 in 50,000. Gross Area= 1,413,318± Sq. Ft. / 32.445± Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAFER, KLINE & WARREN, INC. ENGINEERS ~ SURVEYORS 11250 CORPORATE AVENUE LENEXA, KANSAS 66219 (913) 888-7800  www.skw-inc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undersigned proprietors have hereunto subscribed their hand. OWNER:  Midwest Gateway Venture, LLC By										 Keith Copaken STATE OF					) ) )SS. COUNTY OF				)  )  This instrument was acknowledged before me on this 		  day of             		     , 2017 by   day of             		     , 2017 by             		     , 2017 by      , 2017 by  , 2017 by Keith Copaken of Midwest Gateway Venture, LLC. My Commission Expires: 				 Notary Public APPROVED by the Governing body of the City of Edgerton, this       day of 					 , 2017.             day of 					 , 2017.        day of 					 , 2017.        , 2017.       Donald Roberts, Mayor							Janeice Rawles, Clerk Janeice Rawles, Clerk APPROVED by the City of Edgerton, Kansas Planning Commission, this       day of 					 , 2017.             day of 					 , 2017.        day of 					 , 2017.        , 2017.       Attest:						 Chuck Davis, Chairman										Maria O'Neill, Secretary Maria O'Neill, Secretary APPROVED by the Zoning Administrator, on this this       day of 					 , 2017       day of 					 , 2017  day of 					 , 2017  , 2017 Kenneth A. Cook, Zoning Administrator		

AutoCAD SHX Text
= Right-of-Way line

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
= Building Line

AutoCAD SHX Text
B/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL PLAT OF  MIDWEST GATEWAY PART OF THE SW 1/4, SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 14, RANGE 22,  CITY OF EDGERTON, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project Location

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC.34-14-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 191st St.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Waverly Rd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD NOTE: This property lies within Flood Zone X, defined as areas determined to be outside the 500-year flood, as shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map, prepared by the Federal Emergency Agency's National Flood Insurance Program for Johnson County, Kansas, Map Number 20091C0290F and dated August 3, 2009.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER/APPLICANT Midwest Gateway Venture, LLC 1100 Walnut, Suite 200 Kansas City, MO 64106

AutoCAD SHX Text
I Hereby certify that the information shown hereon is based on a field survey performed under my supervision on November 10, 2015.  Robert C. Sandlin, KS LS-1602

AutoCAD SHX Text
160592-010 FPLAT.dwg December 19, 2016 RCS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT DETAIL 1"=50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
See Easement Detail for Dimensions

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT DETAIL 1"=50'



CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 
Council Meeting Date:   April 27, 2017 
 
Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
 
Subject:   IRBs and Property Tax Abatement for ELHC VI, LLC Project  
 
Hearing Notice Published:   April 19, 2017 in the Gardner News 
 

 
 
Summary: 
 
 The City has received an application for property tax abatement from ELHC VI, LLC.  ELHC VI desires to 
construct an approximately 777,000 sq. ft. spec warehouse and distribution facility to be located at 18451 Montrose Street, 
Edgerton, Kansas.  In order for the City to issue industrial revenue bonds and grant property tax abatement, the City must 
first hold a public hearing, consider the cost-benefit report and then approve a partial assignment of the Master Resolution 
of Intent. 
 
Public Hearing 
 
 A notice of the public hearing has been published at least seven days prior to the date of this meeting.  Written 
notice of the public hearing has also been provided to the County and the School District.  The Council should take 
comments from the public. 
 
Cost-Benefit Report 
 
 Columbia Capital Management, LLC has prepared a cost-benefit report for the proposed project.  The Council 
should consider the cost-benefit report and ask any questions the Council may have about the report. 
 
Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
 
 The City previously adopted a Master Resolution of Intent for the benefit of Edgerton Land Holding Company, 
LLC (“Edgerton Land”) for constructing various projects in the Logistics Park-Kansas City, and provided for the issuance 
of up to $1,000,000,000 in industrial revenue bonds.  The Master Resolution of Intent allows Edgerton Land to assign 
portions of the Master Resolution of Intent to various companies that locate within the park.  The partial assignment of the 
Master Resolution of Intent assigns $42,600,000 of the Master Resolution of Intent to ELHC VI for the purpose of 
constructing this project. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17A 

 

RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT OF A 

RESOLUTION OF INTENT FROM EDGERTON LAND HOLDING COMPANY, 

LLC TO ELHC VI, LLC, OR ITS SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and thereby to further 

promote, stimulate and develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the State of Kansas; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons, 

firms or corporations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution No. 07-08-10A on July 8, 2010, as amended by 

Resolution No. 04-25-13A adopted on April 25, 2013 and Resolution No. 04-09-15A adopted on April 9, 

2015  (collectively, the “Resolution of Intent”) determining the intent of the City to issue its industrial 

revenue bonds in multiple series, the aggregate amount of all series not to exceed $1,000,000,000 (the 

“Bonds”), to finance the costs of acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving and equipping the 

Logistics Park Projects (as defined in the Resolution of Intent) for the benefit of Edgerton Land Holding 

Company, LLC (the “Developer”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Resolution of Intent permits the Developer, with the consent of the City, to 

assign a portion of its interest in the Resolution of Intent to another entity, thereby conferring on such 

entity the benefits of the Resolution of Intent and the proceedings related thereto; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer desires to assign $42,600,000 of its interest in the Resolution of 

Intent to ELHC VI, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (the “Company”), for the purposes of 

permitting the Company to acquire, construct and equip a commercial project, consisting of an 

approximately 777,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “ELHC Project”), to be located at 

18451 Montrose Street, Edgerton, Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to such partial assignment of the Resolution of Intent to 

the Company. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent.  The Governing Body of the City 

hereby consents to the assignment by the Developer of $42,600,000 of the Developer’s interest in the 

Resolution of Intent to the Company for the purposes of completing the ELHC Project, which is a 

Logistics Park Project.  The City agrees that the Company will now be entitled to the benefits of the 

Resolution of Intent to the same extent and on the same terms as the Developer with respect to the ELHC 

Project. 

 

 Section 2.  Authorization to Proceed.  The Company is authorized to proceed with the acquiring, 

constructing and equipping of the ELHC Project, and to advance such funds as may be necessary to 



 -2- 

Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
ELHC VI, LLC Project 

accomplish such purposes, and, to the extent permitted by law, the City will reimburse the Company for all 

expenditures paid or incurred therefor out of the proceeds of the Bonds. 

 

 Section 3.  Benefit of Resolution.  This Resolution will inure to the benefit of the City and the 

Company.  The Company may, with the prior written consent of the City, assign its interest in this 

Resolution and the Resolution of Intent to another entity, and such assignee will be entitled to the benefits of 

this Resolution, the Resolution of Intent and the proceedings related hereto. 

 

 Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after 

its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 



!

!

 

6330 Lamar  
Suite 200 
Overland Park, Kansas 66202 

! !  

Jeff White, Principal 
913.312.8077 
jwhite@columbiacapital.com 

!
April!14,!2017!
!
Ms.!Beth!Linn!
City!Administrator!
City!of!Edgerton!
404!East!Nelson!
Edgerton,!Kansas!66021!
!
RE:$Cost)Benefit$Analysis$for$ELHC$VI,$LLC$
!
Dear!Beth:!
!
Please! find! attached! the! results! of! our! costGbenefit! analysis! related! to! the! projected!
property!tax!abatement!to!be!granted!by!the!City!to!applicant!ELHC!VI,!LLC,!which!plans!
to! construct! a! new! 777,000! square! foot! distribution! and! warehousing! facility! in!
Logistics!Park!Kansas!City! (LPKC).!The!purpose!of! this!analysis! is! to! satisfy! the!City’s!
requirement! pursuant! to! KSA! 12G1749d! or! KSA! 79G251(a)(1)! to! undertake! a! costG
benefit! analysis!before!granting!a!property! tax!abatement.!Consistent!with!City!policy!
for!development!within!LPKC,!this!analysis!assumes!the!City!will!grant!a!100%!property!
tax! abatement! for! 10! years! with! the! applicant! paying! an! annual! paymentGinGlieuGofG
taxes!equal!to!$0.21!per!square!foot!on!the!building!to!be!constructed.!!
!
BACKGROUND 
As!part!of!negotiations!with!the!original!master!developer!on!the!potential! location!of!
LPKC! in! Edgerton,! the! Edgerton! City! Council! approved! an! incentives! program! that!
provides!tenGyear!property!tax!abatements!for!projects!locating!in!LPKC.!The!purpose!of!
these! abatements! was! to! ensure! that! rents! paid! by! the! eventual! users! of! buildings!
constructed! by! the! master! developer! would! be! competitive! against!
warehouse/distribution!developments!in!Olathe,!south!Kansas!City,!Riverside!and!those!
located! in! other! cities,! including! Dallas,! Chicago,! Memphis! and! Indianapolis.! Like!
Edgerton,!these!communities!also!have!incentives!programs!in!place!for!warehouse!and!
distribution!facilities.!
!
The! original! master! developer! reported—and! its! successor,! NorthPoint!
Development/Edgerton! Land! Holding! Company! (ELHC)! continues! to! make! the!
argument—that,! without! the! abatement! incentives,! largeGscale! warehouse! and!
distribution! facilities! would! not!materialize! in! LPKC! and! certainly! not! at! the! pace! of!
development!LPKC!has!seen!in!recent!years:!the!presence!of!the!abatements!was!and!is!
a!necessary!condition!to!the!development!of!the!project.!
!
 
 
 



  CBA for ELHC VI, LLC • 2 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

ABATEMENT MECHANICS 
Under! Kansas! law,! every! ad! valorem! tax! abatement! is! a! 100%! abatement.! Cities!
granting! an! abatement! have! the! right! to! negotiate! paymentsGinGlieuGofGtax! (PILOT)!
payments!from!the!abatement!beneficiary!to!reduce!the!effective!value!of!the!abatement!
to! that! party.! PILOT! payments! are! distributed! by! Kansas! counties! to! all! taxing!
jurisdictions! affected! by! the! abatement! in! the! same! proportion! as! regular! property!
taxes.!
!
Property! tax! abatements! effectively! defer! a! portion! of! the! tax! benefit! on! new!
development! for! a! period! of! up! to! 10! years.! Although! property! tax! abatements! can!
create! a! loss! of! status! quo! ante! tax! revenues! for! taxing! jurisdictions,! abatements! at!
LPKC!have!a!very!limited!impact!on!existing!tax!revenues.!Because!the!vast!majority!of!
undeveloped!land!within!the!boundaries!of!LPKC!is!classified!for!property!tax!purposes!
as!“farming!or!ranch!operations,”!status!quo!ante!property!taxes!in!the!aggregate!within!
LPKC!tend!to!total!less!than!$50!per!acre!per!year.!
!
ECONOMICS 
The! subject! property! is! approximately! 50! acres! in! size! and! will! house! an! estimated!
777,000! square! foot! distribution! and! warehousing! facility.! Pursuant! to! the! City’s!
agreement!with! the!master!developer,! this! analysis! assumes! the!City!will! provide! the!
applicant!with!a!100%!property!tax!abatement!for!10!years.!We!have!further!assumed!
that,! consistent!with! its! agreement!with! the!master! developer,! the! City!will! impose! a!
$0.21!per!square!foot!per!year!PILOT,!or!$163,170!per!year.!!
!
The!table!below!reflects!the!immediate!impact!on!property!tax/PILOT!receipts!from!the!
subject!property,!assuming!a!status!quo!ante! tax!burden!of!$50!per!acre!per!year!and!
based!upon!November!2016!levy!rates!published!by!Johnson!County.!
!
    EXISTING TAXES NEW PILOTs ANNUAL NET TAX  
ENTITY LEVY % of TOTAL  LOST PAID GAIN/(LOSS) 
State of KS 1.500 0.97%  $(24) $ 1,584  $ 1,560  
Johnson Co. 19.590 12.68%  (317)  20,687   20,371  
JCCC 9.473 6.13%  (153)  10,004   9,850  
JCPRD 3.102 2.01%  (50)  3,276   3,226  
Edgerton 33.654 21.78%  (544)  35,539   34,995  
USD 231 Uniform 20.000 12.94%  (323)  21,120   20,797  
USD 231 Capital 8.000 5.18%  (129)  8,448   8,319  
USD 231 Other 20.883 13.52%  (338)  22,053   21,715  
USD 231 Bond 18.904 12.23%  (306)  19,963   19,657  
Fire Dist #1 15.494 10.03%  (250)  16,362   16,111  
Library 3.915 2.53%  (63)  4,134   4,071  
       
 154.515 100.00%  $(2,498) $ 163,170  $ 160,672  
!
COST-BENEFIT ANALYSIS DETAILS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
KSA! 12G1749d(2)! requires! notification! of! anticipated! abatements! only! to! counties! or!
school!districts!affected.!As!a!result,!our!analysis!focuses!on!financial!impacts!to!the!City,!
Johnson! County! and! USD! 231! Gardner/Edgerton! Schools! (the!District).!We! have! not!
calculated! the! costGbenefit! on! other! taxing! jurisdictions.! State! law! also! requires! the!
analysis! to! include! “the! effect! of! the! exemption! on! state! revenues.”! Our! modeling!
includes!such!an!estimate.!
!



  CBA for ELHC VI, LLC • 3 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

Our! proprietary! costGbenefit! modeling! relies! on! a! number! of! key! assumptions! in! the!
calculation! of! net! present! value! benefit! to! the! City,! Johnson! County! and! the! District.!
Most!of!our!assumptions!are!derived!from!public!information,!although!some!inputs!are!
based! upon! dialogue! with! subject! matter! experts,! including! staff! of! the! Kansas!
Department!of!Revenue.!Some!of!these!key!assumptions!include:!
!
• An!evaluation!of! the!direct! costs!and!benefits!of! the!project.!Columbia’s!model!

does! not! include! indirect! or! “spinGoff”! effects! as! a! result! of! inputGoutput!
multipliers.!
!

• A! tenGyear! analysis! timeframe! for! each! individual! project,! matching! the!
maximum!permitted!term!of!the!abatement.!

!
• Direct!costs!to!the!City,!the!County,!the!school!district!and!the!State!as!estimated!

by! Columbia! based! upon! the! financial! reports,! expert! analysis! and/or!
conversations!with!key!staff!members!within!those!agencies!and!at!the!State!of!
Kansas.!Please!note!our!analysis!assumes!the!return!of!a!school!finance!formula!
that!provides!aid!to!the!District!on!a!per!pupil!basis!(see!below).!

!
• Where! applicable,! reliance! upon! statistical! data! as! reported! in! the! 2010! US!

Census.!
!
• The! use! of! a! discount! rate! comprised! of! two! components:! a! riskGfree! rate! of!

return! (the! current! yield! of! the! onGtheGrun! 10Gyear! US! Treasury)! plus! a! risk!
premium!of! two! (2)! percent.! The! value! of! the! discount! rate! is! a! proxy! for! the!
opportunity! cost! of! the! City! (and! other! agencies)! of! foregoing! the! future!
property!and/or!sales!tax!revenues!that!would!be!generated!by!the!development.!
Thought!of!another!way,!if!the!City!had!those!revenues!in!hand!and!placed!them!
in!an!alternative! investment!with! the!same!risk!characteristics,!what!would!be!
its!expected!rate!of!return?!

!
TREATMENT OF SCHOOL FINANCE FORMULA 
As!of!the!date!of!this!analysis,!the!mechanics!of!public!school!finances!in!Kansas!remain!
in! flux.! The! Kansas! legislature,! through! special! session! during! the! summer! of! 2016,!
resolved!immediate!judicial!concerns!about!funding!equity!that!might!have!delayed!the!
start!of!the!2016/17!school!year.!But,!lower!Kansas!courts!found!that!the!current!block!
grant! funding!mechanism! is! constitutionally! flawed! and! falls! hundreds! of! millions! of!
dollars! short!of! the!amount!of! state!aid! to! schools!necessary! to! satisfy! the! “adequate”!
funding!requirement!within!the!state!constitution.!The!Kansas!Supreme!Court!affirmed!
those! findings! on! March! 2,! 2017,! giving! the! legislature! a! June! 30,! 2017,! deadline! to!
resolve!the!funding!inadequacy.!!
!
For! the! purposes! of! our! analysis,!we! have! assumed! the! existence! of! a! school! funding!
formula!that! increases!or!decreases!district!state!aid!based!upon!the!district’s!student!
enrollment.! The! district! court’s! findings! on! the! funding! adequacy! issue! were!
particularly! critical! of! the! current! block! grant! formula’s! failure! to! recognize! and!
compensate!schools!for!the!impacts!of!changes!in!enrollment.!Our!costGbenefit!modeling!



  CBA for ELHC VI, LLC • 4 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

assumes!a!return!to!the!capitationGbased!funding!approach!that!has!prevailed!in!Kansas!
since!the!1990s.!
!
For!the!treatment!of!costs!in!the!model,!we!have!assumed!that!the!addition!of!one!new!
child! in! the! schools! increases! the! District’s! costs! by! an! average! cost! to! educate! the!
remainder! of! the! students! currently! within! the! District.! (This! approach! is! consistent!
with!our! treatment!of!new!city!and!county!residents!on!city!and!county!budgets.)!For!
small!changes!in!student!enrollment,!this!approach!likely!overGstates!the!cost!impact!to!
the!District:!a!District!with!5,500!students! is!very! likely! to!spend! the!same!amount! in!
the!aggregate!to!educate!those!children!as!it!would!if!its!enrollment!were!5,501!instead.!
!
It!is!important!to!note!that,!under!the!state!constitution,!the!obligation!of!funding!public!
schools! is! fundamentally! the! State’s.! The! majority! of! the! local! property! tax! levies!
imposed!by!the!District!automatically!adjust!to!provide!a!level!of!funding!prescribed!by!
school! funding! laws! or! regulations.! Put! another! way,! as! assessed! valuations! decline,!
property! tax! levy! rates! increase! to! produce! required! revenue;! similarly,! as! assessed!
valuations!increase,!property!tax!levy!levies!rollGdown!to!limit!revenue!collected.!This!is!
how,!for!instance,!school!districts!are!able!to!execute!“no!tax!increase”!bond!issues—as!
assessed!valuations! increase,! existing!debt! service! levies!produce!higher!property! tax!
receipts,! providing! schools! with! additional! financial! resources! to! pay! principal! and!
interest!on!debt!even!though!the!levy!rate!itself!has!not!changed.!
!
The! one! exception! to! this! general! rule! is! the! levy! the!District!may! impose! for! capital!
purposes.!That!levy!is!capped!under!current!state!law!at!eight!mills.!Because!the!District!
imposes!the! levy!at! the!eightGmill! limit,!any!reduction! in!assessed!value! in!the!District!
reduces! tax! dollars! available! to! the! District.! Similarly,! increases! in! assessed! value!
produce!more!dollars!for!the!purposes!permitted!related!to!that!levy.!
!
As! demonstrated! in! the! “Economics”! section! above,! we! expect! most! projects! within!
LPKC! to! produce! positive! net! property! tax/PILOT! revenues! for! the! District! (and! all!
other! taxing! entities)! compared! to! existing,! undeveloped! property,! even! during! the!
term!of!the!tax!abatement!on!such!projects.!
!
USING THE COST-BENEFIT MODELING RESULTS 
The! output! of! the! model! is! presented! as! the! net! present! value! benefit/(cost)! of! the!
project!for!the!City,!County!and!school!district!over!the!10Gyear!life!of!the!abatement!on!
each!project.!The!net!benefit!(or,!if!negative,!cost)!of!the!incentive!package!is!presented!
in! today’s! dollars.! The! estimated! impact! on! State! revenues! is! presented! in! nominal!
(future!value)!terms.!We!also!provide!an!estimated!future!value!project!contribution!to!
the!City’s!Public!Infrastructure!Fund!(PIF).!While!the!modeling!shows!a!significant!net!
present!value!benefit!to!the!City,!it!is!important!to!note!that!the$majority$of$the$City’s$net$
benefit$is$reinvested$in$LPKC$through$the$PIF.!
!
In! the! preparation! of! this! costGbenefit! analysis,! Columbia! has! relied! upon! the!
information!provided!to!it!by!applicant!and!has!not!independently!verified!or!validated!
these!data.!!The!City!must!draw!its!own!conclusions!as!to!the!reliability!of!these!data.!!
!



  CBA for ELHC VI, LLC • 5 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

Finally,! the! intent! of! this! analysis! and! of! the! applicable! statutes! is! to! inform! the!
governing! body’s! policy! debate! about! the! value! of! the! abatement! incentive! it! is!
providing!to!the!applicant.!The!project’s!generation!of!a!net!present!value!benefit!to!the!
agencies!affected!should!be!but!one!of!the!many!factors!in!the!governing!body’s!decision!
about!whether!and!how!much!incentive!to!provide!to!any!applicant.!
!
Thank!you!in!advance!for!your!thoughtful!consideration!of!the!analysis!attached.!Please!
let!me!know!if!you!have!any!questions.!
!
Respectfully!submitted,!
COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC 
!
!
!
Jeff!White!
Principal$



COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC DATE OF ANALYSIS: 4/15/17

SUMMARY OF COSTS AND BENEFITS 
City of Edgerton, Kansas

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Application Date: 4/12/17 Summary of Incentives Provided:
Firm Name: ELHC VI, LLC
Firm Address: 4825 NW 41 St., Suite 500

Riverside, Missouri 64150

Firm Contact: Patrick Robinson Building Size (sf):
913.915.7150

SUMMARY OF INCENTIVE PACKAGE (LOCAL GOVERNMENT IMPACTS ONLY): PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES RECEIPTS:

City County School
Year (%) ($) (%) ($) County School ($) ($) ($)

2 100 664,943 100 0 0 0 35,539 20,687 71,584
3 100 664,943 100 0 0 0 35,539 20,687 71,584
4 100 664,943 100 0 0 0 35,539 20,687 71,584
5 100 664,943 100 0 0 0 35,539 20,687 71,584
6 100 664,943 100 0 0 0 35,539 20,687 71,584
7 100 664,943 100 0 0 0 35,539 20,687 71,584
8 100 664,943 100 0 0 0 35,539 20,687 71,584
9 100 664,943 100 0 0 0 35,539 20,687 71,584

10 100 664,943 100 0 0 0 35,539 20,687 71,584
11 100 664,943 100 0 0 0 35,539 20,687 71,584

SUMMARY OF PRESENT VALUE BENEFITS:

Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV
Year Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit

2 555,833 206,014 349,819 322,001 131,732 127,318 4,414 4,063 464,046 394,189 69,857 64,302
3 555,078 206,014 349,064 308,267 130,814 127,318 3,496 3,088 464,046 394,189 69,857 61,692
4 555,117 206,014 349,103 295,789 130,870 127,318 3,552 3,009 464,046 394,189 69,857 59,189
5 555,157 206,014 349,143 283,818 130,928 127,318 3,610 2,935 464,046 394,189 69,857 56,787
6 555,200 206,014 349,186 272,333 130,989 127,318 3,671 2,863 464,046 394,189 69,857 54,482
7 555,245 206,014 349,231 261,315 131,053 127,318 3,735 2,795 464,046 394,189 69,857 52,271
8 555,292 206,014 349,278 250,743 131,121 127,318 3,803 2,730 464,046 394,189 69,857 50,150
9 555,342 206,014 349,328 240,602 131,191 127,318 3,873 2,668 464,046 394,189 69,857 48,114

10 555,394 206,014 349,380 230,871 131,266 127,318 3,948 2,609 464,046 394,189 69,857 46,162
11 555,448 206,014 349,434 221,537 131,344 127,318 4,026 2,552 464,046 394,189 69,857 44,288

5,553,106 2,060,140 3,492,965 2,687,276 1,311,308 1,273,180 38,128 29,311 4,640,463 3,941,892 698,571 537,438

SUMMARY OF ECONOMIC IMPACT (over 10-year period):

Number of jobs to be created : 220

Number of new residents:
   City 6
   County 7
   School District 7

Expected 10-Year Contribution to PIF: 2,618,900$                    

Impact of exemption on state revenues: (82,410)$                        

Property Tax Abatement Construction Sales Tax Abatement Direct Incentives

County Summary

0
0
0
0

City Summary

City

100% real property tax abatement for a 10 year period, as well as a construction sales tax exemption for materials, with a PILOT 
payment of $0.21/s.f. per year.

0
0

School District Summary

0
0
0
0

777,000                



CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 
Council Meeting Date:   April 27, 2017 
 
Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
 
Subject:   IRBs and Property Tax Abatement for ELHC IX, LLC Project  
 
Hearing Notice Published:   April 19, 2017 in the Gardner News 
 

 
 
Summary: 
 
 The City has received an application for property tax abatement from ELHC IX, LLC.  ELHC IX desires to 
construct an approximately 492,000 sq. ft. spec warehouse and distribution facility to be located at 30700 W. 183rd Street, 
Edgerton, Kansas.  In order for the City to issue industrial revenue bonds and grant property tax abatement, the City must 
first hold a public hearing, consider the cost-benefit report and then approve a partial assignment of the Master Resolution 
of Intent. 
 
Public Hearing 
 
 A notice of the public hearing has been published at least seven days prior to the date of this meeting.  Written 
notice of the public hearing has also been provided to the County and the School District.  The Council should take 
comments from the public. 
 
Cost-Benefit Report 
 
 Columbia Capital Management, LLC has prepared a cost-benefit report for the proposed project.  The Council 
should consider the cost-benefit report and ask any questions the Council may have about the report. 
 
Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
 
 The City previously adopted a Master Resolution of Intent for the benefit of Edgerton Land Holding Company, 
LLC (“Edgerton Land”) for constructing various projects in the Logistics Park-Kansas City, and provided for the issuance 
of up to $1,000,000,000 in industrial revenue bonds.  The Master Resolution of Intent allows Edgerton Land to assign 
portions of the Master Resolution of Intent to various companies that locate within the park.  The partial assignment of the 
Master Resolution of Intent assigns $35,155,000 of the Master Resolution of Intent to ELHC IX for the purpose of 
constructing this project. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17B 

 

RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT OF A 

RESOLUTION OF INTENT FROM EDGERTON LAND HOLDING COMPANY, 

LLC TO ELHC IX, LLC, OR ITS SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and thereby to further 

promote, stimulate and develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the State of Kansas; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons, 

firms or corporations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution No. 07-08-10A on July 8, 2010, as amended by 

Resolution No. 04-25-13A adopted on April 25, 2013 and Resolution No. 04-09-15A adopted on April 9, 

2015  (collectively, the “Resolution of Intent”) determining the intent of the City to issue its industrial 

revenue bonds in multiple series, the aggregate amount of all series not to exceed $1,000,000,000 (the 

“Bonds”), to finance the costs of acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving and equipping the 

Logistics Park Projects (as defined in the Resolution of Intent) for the benefit of Edgerton Land Holding 

Company, LLC (the “Developer”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Resolution of Intent permits the Developer, with the consent of the City, to 

assign a portion of its interest in the Resolution of Intent to another entity, thereby conferring on such 

entity the benefits of the Resolution of Intent and the proceedings related thereto; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer desires to assign $35,155,000 of its interest in the Resolution of 

Intent to ELHC IX, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (the “Company”), for the purposes of 

permitting the Company to acquire, construct and equip a commercial project, consisting of an 

approximately 492,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “ELHC Project”), to be located at 

30700 W. 183rd Street, Edgerton, Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to such partial assignment of the Resolution of Intent to 

the Company. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent.  The Governing Body of the City 

hereby consents to the assignment by the Developer of $35,155,000 of the Developer’s interest in the 

Resolution of Intent to the Company for the purposes of completing the ELHC Project, which is a 

Logistics Park Project.  The City agrees that the Company will now be entitled to the benefits of the 

Resolution of Intent to the same extent and on the same terms as the Developer with respect to the ELHC 

Project. 

 

 Section 2.  Authorization to Proceed.  The Company is authorized to proceed with the acquiring, 

constructing and equipping of the ELHC Project, and to advance such funds as may be necessary to 



 -2- 

Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
ELHC IX, LLC Project 

accomplish such purposes, and, to the extent permitted by law, the City will reimburse the Company for all 

expenditures paid or incurred therefor out of the proceeds of the Bonds. 

 

 Section 3.  Benefit of Resolution.  This Resolution will inure to the benefit of the City and the 

Company.  The Company may, with the prior written consent of the City, assign its interest in this 

Resolution and the Resolution of Intent to another entity, and such assignee will be entitled to the benefits of 

this Resolution, the Resolution of Intent and the proceedings related hereto. 

 

 Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after 

its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 



!

!

 

6330 Lamar  
Suite 200 
Overland Park, Kansas 66202 

! !  

Jeff White, Principal 
913.312.8077 
jwhite@columbiacapital.com 

!
April!14,!2017!
!
Ms.!Beth!Linn!
City!Administrator!
City!of!Edgerton!
404!East!Nelson!
Edgerton,!Kansas!66021!
!
RE:$Cost)Benefit$Analysis$for$ELHC$IX,$LLC$
!
Dear!Beth:!
!
Please! find! attached! the! results! of! our! costGbenefit! analysis! related! to! the! projected!
property!tax!abatement!to!be!granted!by!the!City!to!applicant!ELHC!IX,!LLC,!which!plans!
to! construct! a! new! 492,000! square! foot! distribution! and! warehousing! facility! in!
Logistics!Park!Kansas!City! (LPKC).!The!purpose!of! this!analysis! is! to! satisfy! the!City’s!
requirement! pursuant! to! KSA! 12G1749d! or! KSA! 79G251(a)(1)! to! undertake! a! costG
benefit! analysis!before!granting!a!property! tax!abatement.!Consistent!with!City!policy!
for!development!within!LPKC,!this!analysis!assumes!the!City!will!grant!a!100%!property!
tax! abatement! for! 10! years! with! the! applicant! paying! an! annual! paymentGinGlieuGofG
taxes!equal!to!$0.21!per!square!foot!on!the!building!to!be!constructed.!!
!
BACKGROUND 
As!part!of!negotiations!with!the!original!master!developer!on!the!potential! location!of!
LPKC! in! Edgerton,! the! Edgerton! City! Council! approved! an! incentives! program! that!
provides!tenGyear!property!tax!abatements!for!projects!locating!in!LPKC.!The!purpose!of!
these! abatements! was! to! ensure! that! rents! paid! by! the! eventual! users! of! buildings!
constructed! by! the! master! developer! would! be! competitive! against!
warehouse/distribution!developments!in!Olathe,!south!Kansas!City,!Riverside!and!those!
located! in! other! cities,! including! Dallas,! Chicago,! Memphis! and! Indianapolis.! Like!
Edgerton,!these!communities!also!have!incentives!programs!in!place!for!warehouse!and!
distribution!facilities.!
!
The! original! master! developer! reported—and! its! successor,! NorthPoint!
Development/Edgerton! Land! Holding! Company! (ELHC)! continues! to! make! the!
argument—that,! without! the! abatement! incentives,! largeGscale! warehouse! and!
distribution! facilities! would! not!materialize! in! LPKC! and! certainly! not! at! the! pace! of!
development!LPKC!has!seen!in!recent!years:!the!presence!of!the!abatements!was!and!is!
a!necessary!condition!to!the!development!of!the!project.!
!
 
 
 



  CBA for ELHC IX, LLC • 2 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

ABATEMENT MECHANICS 
Under! Kansas! law,! every! ad! valorem! tax! abatement! is! a! 100%! abatement.! Cities!
granting! an! abatement! have! the! right! to! negotiate! paymentsGinGlieuGofGtax! (PILOT)!
payments!from!the!abatement!beneficiary!to!reduce!the!effective!value!of!the!abatement!
to! that! party.! PILOT! payments! are! distributed! by! Kansas! counties! to! all! taxing!
jurisdictions! affected! by! the! abatement! in! the! same! proportion! as! regular! property!
taxes.!
!
Property! tax! abatements! effectively! defer! a! portion! of! the! tax! benefit! on! new!
development! for! a! period! of! up! to! 10! years.! Although! property! tax! abatements! can!
create! a! loss! of! status! quo! ante! tax! revenues! for! taxing! jurisdictions,! abatements! at!
LPKC!have!a!very!limited!impact!on!existing!tax!revenues.!Because!the!vast!majority!of!
undeveloped!land!within!the!boundaries!of!LPKC!is!classified!for!property!tax!purposes!
as!“farming!or!ranch!operations,”!status!quo!ante!property!taxes!in!the!aggregate!within!
LPKC!tend!to!total!less!than!$50!per!acre!per!year.!
!
ECONOMICS 
The! subject! property! is! approximately! 36! acres! in! size! and! will! house! an! estimated!
492,000! square! foot! distribution! and! warehousing! facility.! Pursuant! to! the! City’s!
agreement!with! the!master!developer,! this! analysis! assumes! the!City!will! provide! the!
applicant!with!a!100%!property!tax!abatement!for!10!years.!We!have!further!assumed!
that,! consistent!with! its! agreement!with! the!master! developer,! the! City!will! impose! a!
$0.21!per!square!foot!per!year!PILOT,!or!$103,320!per!year.!!
!
The!table!below!reflects!the!immediate!impact!on!property!tax/PILOT!receipts!from!the!
subject!property,!assuming!a!status!quo!ante! tax!burden!of!$50!per!acre!per!year!and!
based!upon!November!2016!levy!rates!published!by!Johnson!County.!
!
    EXISTING TAXES NEW PILOTs ANNUAL NET TAX  
ENTITY LEVY % of TOTAL  LOST PAID GAIN/(LOSS) 
State of KS 1.500 0.97%  $(18) $ 1,003  $ 985  
Johnson Co. 19.590 12.68%  (230)  13,099   12,869  
JCCC 9.473 6.13%  (111)  6,334   6,223  
JCPRD 3.102 2.01%  (36)  2,074   2,038  
Edgerton 33.654 21.78%  (396)  22,504   22,108  
USD 231 Uniform 20.000 12.94%  (235)  13,373   13,138  
USD 231 Capital 8.000 5.18%  (94)  5,349   5,255  
USD 231 Other 20.883 13.52%  (246)  13,964   13,718  
USD 231 Bond 18.904 12.23%  (222)  12,641   12,418  
Fire Dist #1 15.494 10.03%  (182)  10,360   10,178  
Library 3.915 2.53%  (46)  2,618   2,572  
       
 154.515 100.00%  $(1,818) $ 103,320  $ 101,502  
!
COST-BENEFIT ANALYSIS DETAILS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
KSA! 12G1749d(2)! requires! notification! of! anticipated! abatements! only! to! counties! or!
school!districts!affected.!As!a!result,!our!analysis!focuses!on!financial!impacts!to!the!City,!
Johnson! County! and! USD! 231! Gardner/Edgerton! Schools! (the!District).!We! have! not!
calculated! the! costGbenefit! on! other! taxing! jurisdictions.! State! law! also! requires! the!
analysis! to! include! “the! effect! of! the! exemption! on! state! revenues.”! Our! modeling!
includes!such!an!estimate.!
!



  CBA for ELHC IX, LLC • 3 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

Our! proprietary! costGbenefit! modeling! relies! on! a! number! of! key! assumptions! in! the!
calculation! of! net! present! value! benefit! to! the! City,! Johnson! County! and! the! District.!
Most!of!our!assumptions!are!derived!from!public!information,!although!some!inputs!are!
based! upon! dialogue! with! subject! matter! experts,! including! staff! of! the! Kansas!
Department!of!Revenue.!Some!of!these!key!assumptions!include:!
!
• An!evaluation!of! the!direct! costs!and!benefits!of! the!project.!Columbia’s!model!

does! not! include! indirect! or! “spinGoff”! effects! as! a! result! of! inputGoutput!
multipliers.!
!

• A! tenGyear! analysis! timeframe! for! each! individual! project,! matching! the!
maximum!permitted!term!of!the!abatement.!

!
• Direct!costs!to!the!City,!the!County,!the!school!district!and!the!State!as!estimated!

by! Columbia! based! upon! the! financial! reports,! expert! analysis! and/or!
conversations!with!key!staff!members!within!those!agencies!and!at!the!State!of!
Kansas.!Please!note!our!analysis!assumes!the!return!of!a!school!finance!formula!
that!provides!aid!to!the!District!on!a!per!pupil!basis!(see!below).!

!
• Where! applicable,! reliance! upon! statistical! data! as! reported! in! the! 2010! US!

Census.!
!
• The! use! of! a! discount! rate! comprised! of! two! components:! a! riskGfree! rate! of!

return! (the! current! yield! of! the! onGtheGrun! 10Gyear! US! Treasury)! plus! a! risk!
premium!of! two! (2)! percent.! The! value! of! the! discount! rate! is! a! proxy! for! the!
opportunity! cost! of! the! City! (and! other! agencies)! of! foregoing! the! future!
property!and/or!sales!tax!revenues!that!would!be!generated!by!the!development.!
Thought!of!another!way,!if!the!City!had!those!revenues!in!hand!and!placed!them!
in!an!alternative! investment!with! the!same!risk!characteristics,!what!would!be!
its!expected!rate!of!return?!

!
TREATMENT OF SCHOOL FINANCE FORMULA 
As!of!the!date!of!this!analysis,!the!mechanics!of!public!school!finances!in!Kansas!remain!
in! flux.! The! Kansas! legislature,! through! special! session! during! the! summer! of! 2016,!
resolved!immediate!judicial!concerns!about!funding!equity!that!might!have!delayed!the!
start!of!the!2016/17!school!year.!But,!lower!Kansas!courts!found!that!the!current!block!
grant! funding!mechanism! is! constitutionally! flawed! and! falls! hundreds! of!millions! of!
dollars! short!of! the!amount!of! state!aid! to! schools!necessary! to! satisfy! the! “adequate”!
funding!requirement!within!the!state!constitution.!The!Kansas!Supreme!Court!affirmed!
those! findings! on! March! 2,! 2017,! giving! the! legislature! a! June! 30,! 2017,! deadline! to!
resolve!the!funding!inadequacy.!!
!
For! the! purposes! of! our! analysis,!we! have! assumed! the! existence! of! a! school! funding!
formula!that! increases!or!decreases!district!state!aid!based!upon!the!district’s!student!
enrollment.! The! district! court’s! findings! on! the! funding! adequacy! issue! were!
particularly! critical! of! the! current! block! grant! formula’s! failure! to! recognize! and!
compensate!schools!for!the!impacts!of!changes!in!enrollment.!Our!costGbenefit!modeling!



  CBA for ELHC IX, LLC • 4 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

assumes!a!return!to!the!capitationGbased!funding!approach!that!has!prevailed!in!Kansas!
since!the!1990s.!
!
For!the!treatment!of!costs!in!the!model,!we!have!assumed!that!the!addition!of!one!new!
child! in! the! schools! increases! the! District’s! costs! by! an! average! cost! to! educate! the!
remainder! of! the! students! currently! within! the! District.! (This! approach! is! consistent!
with!our! treatment!of!new!city!and!county!residents!on!city!and!county!budgets.)!For!
small!changes!in!student!enrollment,!this!approach!likely!overGstates!the!cost!impact!to!
the!District:!a!District!with!5,500!students! is!very! likely! to!spend! the!same!amount! in!
the!aggregate!to!educate!those!children!as!it!would!if!its!enrollment!were!5,501!instead.!
!
It!is!important!to!note!that,!under!the!state!constitution,!the!obligation!of!funding!public!
schools! is! fundamentally! the! State’s.! The! majority! of! the! local! property! tax! levies!
imposed!by!the!District!automatically!adjust!to!provide!a!level!of!funding!prescribed!by!
school! funding! laws! or! regulations.! Put! another! way,! as! assessed! valuations! decline,!
property! tax! levy! rates! increase! to! produce! required! revenue;! similarly,! as! assessed!
valuations!increase,!property!tax!levy!levies!rollGdown!to!limit!revenue!collected.!This!is!
how,!for!instance,!school!districts!are!able!to!execute!“no!tax!increase”!bond!issues—as!
assessed!valuations! increase,! existing!debt! service! levies!produce!higher!property! tax!
receipts,! providing! schools! with! additional! financial! resources! to! pay! principal! and!
interest!on!debt!even!though!the!levy!rate!itself!has!not!changed.!
!
The! one! exception! to! this! general! rule! is! the! levy! the!District!may! impose! for! capital!
purposes.!That!levy!is!capped!under!current!state!law!at!eight!mills.!Because!the!District!
imposes!the! levy!at! the!eightGmill! limit,!any!reduction! in!assessed!value! in!the!District!
reduces! tax! dollars! available! to! the! District.! Similarly,! increases! in! assessed! value!
produce!more!dollars!for!the!purposes!permitted!related!to!that!levy.!
!
As! demonstrated! in! the! “Economics”! section! above,! we! expect! most! projects! within!
LPKC! to! produce! positive! net! property! tax/PILOT! revenues! for! the! District! (and! all!
other! taxing! entities)! compared! to! existing,! undeveloped! property,! even! during! the!
term!of!the!tax!abatement!on!such!projects.!
!
USING THE COST-BENEFIT MODELING RESULTS 
The! output! of! the! model! is! presented! as! the! net! present! value! benefit/(cost)! of! the!
project!for!the!City,!County!and!school!district!over!the!10Gyear!life!of!the!abatement!on!
each!project.!The!net!benefit!(or,!if!negative,!cost)!of!the!incentive!package!is!presented!
in! today’s! dollars.! The! estimated! impact! on! State! revenues! is! presented! in! nominal!
(future!value)!terms.!We!also!provide!an!estimated!future!value!project!contribution!to!
the!City’s!Public!Infrastructure!Fund!(PIF).!While!the!modeling!shows!a!significant!net!
present!value!benefit!to!the!City,!it!is!important!to!note!that!the$majority$of$the$City’s$net$
benefit$is$reinvested$in$LPKC$through$the$PIF.!
!
In! the! preparation! of! this! costGbenefit! analysis,! Columbia! has! relied! upon! the!
information!provided!to!it!by!applicant!and!has!not!independently!verified!or!validated!
these!data.!!The!City!must!draw!its!own!conclusions!as!to!the!reliability!of!these!data.!!
!



  CBA for ELHC IX, LLC • 5 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

Finally,! the! intent! of! this! analysis! and! of! the! applicable! statutes! is! to! inform! the!
governing! body’s! policy! debate! about! the! value! of! the! abatement! incentive! it! is!
providing!to!the!applicant.!The!project’s!generation!of!a!net!present!value!benefit!to!the!
agencies!affected!should!be!but!one!of!the!many!factors!in!the!governing!body’s!decision!
about!whether!and!how!much!incentive!to!provide!to!any!applicant.!
!
Thank!you!in!advance!for!your!thoughtful!consideration!of!the!analysis!attached.!Please!
let!me!know!if!you!have!any!questions.!
!
Respectfully!submitted,!
COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC 
!
!
!
Jeff!White!
Principal$



COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC DATE OF ANALYSIS: 4/15/17

SUMMARY OF COSTS AND BENEFITS 
City of Edgerton, Kansas

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Application Date: 4/12/17 Summary of Incentives Provided:
Firm Name: ELHC IX, LLC
Firm Address: 4825 NW 41 St., Suite 500

Riverside, Missouri 64150

Firm Contact: Patrick Robinson Building Size (sf):
913.915.7150

SUMMARY OF INCENTIVE PACKAGE (LOCAL GOVERNMENT IMPACTS ONLY): PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES RECEIPTS:

City County School
Year (%) ($) (%) ($) County School ($) ($) ($)

2 100 498,657 100 0 0 0 22,504 13,099 45,327
3 100 498,657 100 0 0 0 22,504 13,099 45,327
4 100 498,657 100 0 0 0 22,504 13,099 45,327
5 100 498,657 100 0 0 0 22,504 13,099 45,327
6 100 498,657 100 0 0 0 22,504 13,099 45,327
7 100 498,657 100 0 0 0 22,504 13,099 45,327
8 100 498,657 100 0 0 0 22,504 13,099 45,327
9 100 498,657 100 0 0 0 22,504 13,099 45,327

10 100 498,657 100 0 0 0 22,504 13,099 45,327
11 100 498,657 100 0 0 0 22,504 13,099 45,327

SUMMARY OF PRESENT VALUE BENEFITS:

Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV
Year Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit

2 377,710 159,777 217,933 200,603 97,229 100,403 -3,174 -2,922 344,656 301,056 43,600 40,133
3 376,955 159,777 217,178 191,795 96,311 100,403 -4,092 -3,613 344,656 301,056 43,600 38,505
4 376,994 159,777 217,217 184,045 96,367 100,403 -4,036 -3,420 344,656 301,056 43,600 36,942
5 377,034 159,777 217,258 176,609 96,425 100,403 -3,978 -3,234 344,656 301,056 43,600 35,443
6 377,077 159,777 217,301 169,474 96,486 100,403 -3,917 -3,055 344,656 301,056 43,600 34,004
7 377,122 159,777 217,345 162,630 96,550 100,403 -3,853 -2,883 344,656 301,056 43,600 32,624
8 377,169 159,777 217,393 156,064 96,618 100,403 -3,785 -2,717 344,656 301,056 43,600 31,300
9 377,219 159,777 217,442 149,765 96,689 100,403 -3,715 -2,558 344,656 301,056 43,600 30,030

10 377,271 159,777 217,494 143,721 96,763 100,403 -3,640 -2,406 344,656 301,056 43,600 28,811
11 377,325 159,777 217,549 137,923 96,841 100,403 -3,562 -2,258 344,656 301,056 43,600 27,642

3,771,875 1,597,765 2,174,110 1,672,629 966,279 1,004,031 -37,752 -29,066 3,446,564 3,010,560 436,004 335,435

SUMMARY OF ECONOMIC IMPACT (over 10-year period):

Number of jobs to be created : 195

Number of new residents:
   City 6
   County 7
   School District 7

Expected 10-Year Contribution to PIF: 1,686,900$                    

Impact of exemption on state revenues: (61,801)$                        

100% real property tax abatement for a 10 year period, as well as a construction sales tax exemption for materials, with a PILOT 
payment of $0.21/s.f. per year.

0
0

School District Summary

0
0
0
0

492,000               

Property Tax Abatement Construction Sales Tax Abatement Direct Incentives

County Summary

0
0
0
0

City Summary

City



CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 
Council Meeting Date:   April 27, 2017 
 
Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
 
Subject:   IRBs and Property Tax Abatement for ELHC XXI, LLC Project  
 
Hearing Notice Published:   April 19, 2017 in the Gardner News 
 

 
 
Summary: 
 
 The City has received an application for property tax abatement from ELHC XXI, LLC.  ELHC XXI desires to 
construct an approximately 200,000 sq. ft. spec warehouse and distribution facility to be located at 19400 Essex Road, 
Edgerton, Kansas.  In order for the City to issue industrial revenue bonds and grant property tax abatement, the City must 
first hold a public hearing, consider the cost-benefit report and then approve a partial assignment of the Master Resolution 
of Intent. 
 
Public Hearing 
 
 A notice of the public hearing has been published at least seven days prior to the date of this meeting.  Written 
notice of the public hearing has also been provided to the County and the School District.  The Council should take 
comments from the public. 
 
Cost-Benefit Report 
 
 Columbia Capital Management, LLC has prepared a cost-benefit report for the proposed project.  The Council 
should consider the cost-benefit report and ask any questions the Council may have about the report. 
 
Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
 
 The City previously adopted a Master Resolution of Intent for the benefit of Edgerton Land Holding Company, 
LLC (“Edgerton Land”) for constructing various projects in the Logistics Park-Kansas City, and provided for the issuance 
of up to $1,000,000,000 in industrial revenue bonds.  The Master Resolution of Intent allows Edgerton Land to assign 
portions of the Master Resolution of Intent to various companies that locate within the park.  The partial assignment of the 
Master Resolution of Intent assigns $38,000,000 of the Master Resolution of Intent to ELHC XXI for the purpose of 
constructing this project. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17C 

 

RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT OF A 

RESOLUTION OF INTENT FROM EDGERTON LAND HOLDING COMPANY, 

LLC TO ELHC XXI, LLC, OR ITS SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and thereby to further 

promote, stimulate and develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the State of Kansas; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons, 

firms or corporations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution No. 07-08-10A on July 8, 2010, as amended by 

Resolution No. 04-25-13A adopted on April 25, 2013 and Resolution No. 04-09-15A adopted on April 9, 

2015  (collectively, the “Resolution of Intent”) determining the intent of the City to issue its industrial 

revenue bonds in multiple series, the aggregate amount of all series not to exceed $1,000,000,000 (the 

“Bonds”), to finance the costs of acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving and equipping the 

Logistics Park Projects (as defined in the Resolution of Intent) for the benefit of Edgerton Land Holding 

Company, LLC (the “Developer”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Resolution of Intent permits the Developer, with the consent of the City, to 

assign a portion of its interest in the Resolution of Intent to another entity, thereby conferring on such 

entity the benefits of the Resolution of Intent and the proceedings related thereto; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer desires to assign $38,000,000 of its interest in the Resolution of 

Intent to ELHC XXI, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (the “Company”), for the purposes of 

permitting the Company to acquire, construct and equip a commercial project, consisting of an 

approximately 200,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “ELHC Project”), to be located at 

19400 Essex Road, Edgerton, Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to such partial assignment of the Resolution of Intent to 

the Company. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent.  The Governing Body of the City 

hereby consents to the assignment by the Developer of $38,000,000 of the Developer’s interest in the 

Resolution of Intent to the Company for the purposes of completing the ELHC Project, which is a 

Logistics Park Project.  The City agrees that the Company will now be entitled to the benefits of the 

Resolution of Intent to the same extent and on the same terms as the Developer with respect to the ELHC 

Project. 

 

 Section 2.  Authorization to Proceed.  The Company is authorized to proceed with the acquiring, 

constructing and equipping of the ELHC Project, and to advance such funds as may be necessary to 



 -2- 

Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
ELHC XXI, LLC Project 

accomplish such purposes, and, to the extent permitted by law, the City will reimburse the Company for all 

expenditures paid or incurred therefor out of the proceeds of the Bonds. 

 

 Section 3.  Benefit of Resolution.  This Resolution will inure to the benefit of the City and the 

Company.  The Company may, with the prior written consent of the City, assign its interest in this 

Resolution and the Resolution of Intent to another entity, and such assignee will be entitled to the benefits of 

this Resolution, the Resolution of Intent and the proceedings related hereto. 

 

 Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after 

its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 



!

!

 

6330 Lamar  
Suite 200 
Overland Park, Kansas 66202 

! !
 

Jeff White, Principal 
913.312.8077 
jwhite@columbiacapital.com 

!

April!18,!2017!

!

Ms.!Beth!Linn!

City!Administrator!

City!of!Edgerton!

404!East!Nelson!

Edgerton,!Kansas!66021!

!

RE:$Cost)Benefit$Analysis$for$ELHC$XXI,$LLC$
!

Dear!Beth:!

!

Please! find! attached! the! results! of! our! costHbenefit! analysis! related! to! the! projected!

property! tax! abatement! to! be! granted! by! the! City! to! applicant! ELHC! XXI,! LLC,! which!

plans! to!construct!a!new!200,000!square! foot!distribution!and!warehousing! facility! in!

Logistics!Park!Kansas!City! (LPKC).!The!purpose!of! this!analysis! is! to! satisfy! the!City’s!
requirement! pursuant! to! KSA! 12H1749d! or! KSA! 79H251(a)(1)! to! undertake! a! costH

benefit! analysis!before!granting!a!property! tax!abatement.!Consistent!with!City!policy!

for!development!within!LPKC,!this!analysis!assumes!the!City!will!grant!a!100%!property!

tax! abatement! for! 10! years! with! the! applicant! paying! an! annual! paymentHinHlieuHofH

taxes!equal!to!$0.21!per!square!foot!on!the!building!to!be!constructed.!!

!

BACKGROUND 
As!part!of!negotiations!with!the!original!master!developer!on!the!potential! location!of!

LPKC! in! Edgerton,! the! Edgerton! City! Council! approved! an! incentives! program! that!

provides!tenHyear!property!tax!abatements!for!projects!locating!in!LPKC.!The!purpose!of!

these! abatements! was! to! ensure! that! rents! paid! by! the! eventual! users! of! buildings!

constructed! by! the! master! developer! would! be! competitive! against!

warehouse/distribution!developments!in!Olathe,!south!Kansas!City,!Riverside!and!those!

located! in! other! cities,! including! Dallas,! Chicago,! Memphis! and! Indianapolis.! Like!

Edgerton,!these!communities!also!have!incentives!programs!in!place!for!warehouse!and!

distribution!facilities.!

!

The! original! master! developer! reported—and! its! successor,! NorthPoint!

Development/Edgerton! Land! Holding! Company! (ELHC)! continues! to! make! the!
argument—that,! without! the! abatement! incentives,! largeHscale! warehouse! and!

distribution! facilities! would! not!materialize! in! LPKC! and! certainly! not! at! the! pace! of!

development!LPKC!has!seen!in!recent!years:!the!presence!of!the!abatements!was!and!is!

a!necessary!condition!to!the!development!of!the!project.!

!

 
 
 



  CBA for ELHC XXI, LLC • 2 
! ! !

!

! ! ! !  
!

ABATEMENT MECHANICS 
Under! Kansas! law,! every! ad! valorem! tax! abatement! is! a! 100%! abatement.! Cities!

granting! an! abatement! have! the! right! to! negotiate! paymentsHinHlieuHofHtax! (PILOT)!
payments!from!the!abatement!beneficiary!to!reduce!the!effective!value!of!the!abatement!

to! that! party.! PILOT! payments! are! distributed! by! Kansas! counties! to! all! taxing!

jurisdictions! affected! by! the! abatement! in! the! same! proportion! as! regular! property!

taxes.!

!

Property! tax! abatements! effectively! defer! a! portion! of! the! tax! benefit! on! new!

development! for! a! period! of! up! to! 10! years.! Although! property! tax! abatements! can!

create! a! loss! of! status! quo! ante! tax! revenues! for! taxing! jurisdictions,! abatements! at!

LPKC!have!a!very!limited!impact!on!existing!tax!revenues.!Because!the!vast!majority!of!

undeveloped!land!within!the!boundaries!of!LPKC!is!classified!for!property!tax!purposes!

as!“farming!or!ranch!operations,”!status!quo!ante!property!taxes!in!the!aggregate!within!

LPKC!tend!to!total!less!than!$50!per!acre!per!year.!

!

ECONOMICS 
The! subject! property! is! approximately! 66! acres! in! size! and! will! house! an! estimated!

200,000! square! foot! distribution! and! warehousing! facility.! Pursuant! to! the! City’s!

agreement!with! the!master!developer,! this! analysis! assumes! the!City!will! provide! the!

applicant!with!a!100%!property!tax!abatement!for!10!years.!We!have!further!assumed!

that,! consistent!with! its! agreement!with! the!master! developer,! the! City!will! impose! a!

$0.21!per!square!foot!per!year!PILOT,!or!$42,000!per!year.!!

!

The!table!below!reflects!the!immediate!impact!on!property!tax/PILOT!receipts!from!the!

subject!property,!assuming!a!status!quo!ante! tax!burden!of!$50!per!acre!per!year!and!

based!upon!November!2016!levy!rates!published!by!Johnson!County.!

!

    EXISTING TAXES NEW PILOTs ANNUAL NET TAX  
ENTITY LEVY % of TOTAL  LOST PAID GAIN/(LOSS) 
State of KS 1.500 0.97%  $(32) $ 408  $ 375  
Johnson Co. 19.590 12.68%  (421)  5,325   4,904  
JCCC 9.473 6.13%  (204)  2,575   2,371  
JCPRD 3.102 2.01%  (67)  843   776  
Edgerton 33.654 21.78%  (724)  9,148   8,424  
USD 231 Uniform 20.000 12.94%  (430)  5,436   5,006  
USD 231 Capital 8.000 5.18%  (172)  2,175   2,002  
USD 231 Other 20.883 13.52%  (449)  5,676   5,227  
USD 231 Bond 18.904 12.23%  (407)  5,138   4,732  
Fire Dist #1 15.494 10.03%  (333)  4,212   3,878  
Library 3.915 2.53%  (84)  1,064   980  
       
 154.515 100.00%  $(3,323) $ 42,000  $ 38,677  
!

COST-BENEFIT ANALYSIS DETAILS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
KSA! 12H1749d(2)! requires! notification! of! anticipated! abatements! only! to! counties! or!

school!districts!affected.!As!a!result,!our!analysis!focuses!on!financial!impacts!to!the!City,!

Johnson! County! and! USD! 231! Gardner/Edgerton! Schools! (the!District).!We! have! not!
calculated! the! costHbenefit! on! other! taxing! jurisdictions.! State! law! also! requires! the!

analysis! to! include! “the! effect! of! the! exemption! on! state! revenues.”! Our! modeling!

includes!such!an!estimate.!

!



  CBA for ELHC XXI, LLC • 3 
! ! !

!

! ! ! !  
!

Our! proprietary! costHbenefit! modeling! relies! on! a! number! of! key! assumptions! in! the!

calculation! of! net! present! value! benefit! to! the! City,! Johnson! County! and! the! District.!

Most!of!our!assumptions!are!derived!from!public!information,!although!some!inputs!are!

based! upon! dialogue! with! subject! matter! experts,! including! staff! of! the! Kansas!

Department!of!Revenue.!Some!of!these!key!assumptions!include:!

!

• An!evaluation!of! the!direct! costs!and!benefits!of! the!project.!Columbia’s!model!

does! not! include! indirect! or! “spinHoff”! effects! as! a! result! of! inputHoutput!

multipliers.!

!

• A! tenHyear! analysis! timeframe! for! each! individual! project,! matching! the!

maximum!permitted!term!of!the!abatement.!

!

• Direct!costs!to!the!City,!the!County,!the!school!district!and!the!State!as!estimated!

by! Columbia! based! upon! the! financial! reports,! expert! analysis! and/or!

conversations!with!key!staff!members!within!those!agencies!and!at!the!State!of!

Kansas.!Please!note!our!analysis!assumes!the!return!of!a!school!finance!formula!

that!provides!aid!to!the!District!on!a!per!pupil!basis!(see!below).!

!

• Where! applicable,! reliance! upon! statistical! data! as! reported! in! the! 2010! US!

Census.!

!

• The! use! of! a! discount! rate! comprised! of! two! components:! a! riskHfree! rate! of!

return! (the! current! yield! of! the! onHtheHrun! 10Hyear! US! Treasury)! plus! a! risk!

premium!of! two! (2)! percent.! The! value! of! the! discount! rate! is! a! proxy! for! the!

opportunity! cost! of! the! City! (and! other! agencies)! of! foregoing! the! future!

property!and/or!sales!tax!revenues!that!would!be!generated!by!the!development.!

Thought!of!another!way,!if!the!City!had!those!revenues!in!hand!and!placed!them!

in!an!alternative! investment!with! the!same!risk!characteristics,!what!would!be!

its!expected!rate!of!return?!

!

TREATMENT OF SCHOOL FINANCE FORMULA 
As!of!the!date!of!this!analysis,!the!mechanics!of!public!school!finances!in!Kansas!remain!

in! flux.! The! Kansas! legislature,! through! special! session! during! the! summer! of! 2016,!

resolved!immediate!judicial!concerns!about!funding!equity!that!might!have!delayed!the!

start!of!the!2016/17!school!year.!But,!lower!Kansas!courts!found!that!the!current!block!

grant! funding!mechanism! is! constitutionally! flawed! and! falls! hundreds! of! millions! of!

dollars! short!of! the!amount!of! state!aid! to! schools!necessary! to! satisfy! the! “adequate”!

funding!requirement!within!the!state!constitution.!The!Kansas!Supreme!Court!affirmed!

those! findings! on! March! 2,! 2017,! giving! the! legislature! a! June! 30,! 2017,! deadline! to!

resolve!the!funding!inadequacy.!!

!

For! the! purposes! of! our! analysis,!we! have! assumed! the! existence! of! a! school! funding!

formula!that! increases!or!decreases!district!state!aid!based!upon!the!district’s!student!

enrollment.! The! district! court’s! findings! on! the! funding! adequacy! issue! were!

particularly! critical! of! the! current! block! grant! formula’s! failure! to! recognize! and!

compensate!schools!for!the!impacts!of!changes!in!enrollment.!Our!costHbenefit!modeling!



  CBA for ELHC XXI, LLC • 4 
! ! !

!

! ! ! !  
!

assumes!a!return!to!the!capitationHbased!funding!approach!that!has!prevailed!in!Kansas!

since!the!1990s.!

!

For!the!treatment!of!costs!in!the!model,!we!have!assumed!that!the!addition!of!one!new!

child! in! the! schools! increases! the! District’s! costs! by! an! average! cost! to! educate! the!

remainder! of! the! students! currently! within! the! District.! (This! approach! is! consistent!

with!our! treatment!of!new!city!and!county!residents!on!city!and!county!budgets.)!For!

small!changes!in!student!enrollment,!this!approach!likely!overHstates!the!cost!impact!to!

the!District:!a!District!with!5,500!students! is!very! likely! to!spend! the!same!amount! in!

the!aggregate!to!educate!those!children!as!it!would!if!its!enrollment!were!5,501!instead.!

!

It!is!important!to!note!that,!under!the!state!constitution,!the!obligation!of!funding!public!

schools! is! fundamentally! the! State’s.! The! majority! of! the! local! property! tax! levies!

imposed!by!the!District!automatically!adjust!to!provide!a!level!of!funding!prescribed!by!

school! funding! laws! or! regulations.! Put! another! way,! as! assessed! valuations! decline,!
property! tax! levy! rates! increase! to! produce! required! revenue;! similarly,! as! assessed!
valuations!increase,!property!tax!levy!levies!rollHdown!to!limit!revenue!collected.!This!is!

how,!for!instance,!school!districts!are!able!to!execute!“no!tax!increase”!bond!issues—as!

assessed!valuations! increase,! existing!debt! service! levies!produce!higher!property! tax!

receipts,! providing! schools! with! additional! financial! resources! to! pay! principal! and!

interest!on!debt!even!though!the!levy!rate!itself!has!not!changed.!

!

The! one! exception! to! this! general! rule! is! the! levy! the!District!may! impose! for! capital!

purposes.!That!levy!is!capped!under!current!state!law!at!eight!mills.!Because!the!District!

imposes!the! levy!at! the!eightHmill! limit,!any!reduction! in!assessed!value! in!the!District!

reduces! tax! dollars! available! to! the! District.! Similarly,! increases! in! assessed! value!

produce!more!dollars!for!the!purposes!permitted!related!to!that!levy.!

!

As! demonstrated! in! the! “Economics”! section! above,! we! expect! most! projects! within!

LPKC! to! produce! positive! net! property! tax/PILOT! revenues! for! the! District! (and! all!

other! taxing! entities)! compared! to! existing,! undeveloped! property,! even! during! the!

term!of!the!tax!abatement!on!such!projects.!

!

USING THE COST-BENEFIT MODELING RESULTS 
The! output! of! the! model! is! presented! as! the! net! present! value! benefit/(cost)! of! the!

project!for!the!City,!County!and!school!district!over!the!10Hyear!life!of!the!abatement!on!

each!project.!The!net!benefit!(or,!if!negative,!cost)!of!the!incentive!package!is!presented!

in! today’s! dollars.! The! estimated! impact! on! State! revenues! is! presented! in! nominal!

(future!value)!terms.!We!also!provide!an!estimated!future!value!project!contribution!to!

the!City’s!Public!Infrastructure!Fund!(PIF).!While!the!modeling!shows!a!significant!net!
present!value!benefit!to!the!City,!it!is!important!to!note!that!the$majority$of$the$City’s$net$
benefit$is$reinvested$in$LPKC$through$the$PIF.!
!

In! the! preparation! of! this! costHbenefit! analysis,! Columbia! has! relied! upon! the!

information!provided!to!it!by!applicant!and!has!not!independently!verified!or!validated!

these!data.!!The!City!must!draw!its!own!conclusions!as!to!the!reliability!of!these!data.!!

!



  CBA for ELHC XXI, LLC • 5 
! ! !

!

! ! ! !  
!

Finally,! the! intent! of! this! analysis! and! of! the! applicable! statutes! is! to! inform! the!

governing! body’s! policy! debate! about! the! value! of! the! abatement! incentive! it! is!

providing!to!the!applicant.!The!project’s!generation!of!a!net!present!value!benefit!to!the!

agencies!affected!should!be!but!one!of!the!many!factors!in!the!governing!body’s!decision!

about!whether!and!how!much!incentive!to!provide!to!any!applicant.!

!

Thank!you!in!advance!for!your!thoughtful!consideration!of!the!analysis!attached.!Please!

let!me!know!if!you!have!any!questions.!

!

Respectfully!submitted,!

COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC 
!

!

!

Jeff!White!

Principal$



COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC DATE OF ANALYSIS: 4/19/17

SUMMARY OF COSTS AND BENEFITS 
City of Edgerton, Kansas

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Application Date: 4/18/17 Summary of Incentives Provided:
Firm Name: ELHC XXI, LLC
Firm Address: 4825 NW 41 St., Suite 500

Riverside, Missouri 64150

Firm Contact: John Thomas Building Size (sf):
816.888.7640

SUMMARY OF INCENTIVE PACKAGE (LOCAL GOVERNMENT IMPACTS ONLY): PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES RECEIPTS:

City County School
Year (%) ($) (%) ($) County School ($) ($) ($)

2 100 575,222 100 0 0 0 9,148 5,325 18,426
3 100 575,222 100 0 0 0 9,148 5,325 18,426
4 100 575,222 100 0 0 0 9,148 5,325 18,426
5 100 575,222 100 0 0 0 9,148 5,325 18,426
6 100 575,222 100 0 0 0 9,148 5,325 18,426
7 100 575,222 100 0 0 0 9,148 5,325 18,426
8 100 575,222 100 0 0 0 9,148 5,325 18,426
9 100 575,222 100 0 0 0 9,148 5,325 18,426

10 100 575,222 100 0 0 0 9,148 5,325 18,426
11 100 575,222 100 0 0 0 9,148 5,325 18,426

SUMMARY OF PRESENT VALUE BENEFITS:

Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV
Year Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit

2 267,342 181,066 86,276 79,491 102,053 112,796 -10,743 -9,898 360,637 343,938 16,699 15,386
3 266,419 181,066 85,352 75,485 100,930 112,796 -11,866 -10,494 360,637 343,938 16,699 14,768
4 266,457 181,066 85,391 72,490 100,985 112,796 -11,811 -10,026 360,637 343,938 16,699 14,176
5 266,498 181,066 85,432 69,614 101,043 112,796 -11,752 -9,576 360,637 343,938 16,699 13,607
6 266,541 181,066 85,475 66,855 101,105 112,796 -11,691 -9,144 360,637 343,938 16,699 13,061
7 266,586 181,066 85,520 64,206 101,169 112,796 -11,627 -8,729 360,637 343,938 16,699 12,537
8 266,633 181,066 85,567 61,664 101,236 112,796 -11,560 -8,331 360,637 343,938 16,699 12,034
9 266,683 181,066 85,616 59,224 101,307 112,796 -11,489 -7,947 360,637 343,938 16,699 11,551

10 266,735 181,066 85,668 56,882 101,381 112,796 -11,415 -7,579 360,637 343,938 16,699 11,088
11 266,789 181,066 85,723 54,635 101,459 112,796 -11,337 -7,225 360,637 343,938 16,699 10,643

2,666,682 1,810,662 856,020 660,546 1,012,668 1,127,958 -115,290 -88,951 3,606,372 3,439,384 166,988 128,851

SUMMARY OF ECONOMIC IMPACT (over 10-year period):

Number of jobs to be created : 650

Number of new residents:
   City 6
   County 7
   School District 7

Expected 10-Year Contribution to PIF: 765,000$                       

Impact of exemption on state revenues: (71,290)$                        

Property Tax Abatement Construction Sales Tax Abatement Direct Incentives

County Summary

0
0
0
0

City Summary

City

100% real property tax abatement for a 10 year period, as well as a construction sales tax exemption for materials, with a PILOT 
payment of $0.21/s.f. per year.

0
0

School District Summary

0
0
0
0

200,000               



CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 
Council Meeting Date:   April 27, 2017 
 
Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
 
Subject:   IRBs and Property Tax Abatement for ColdPoint Logistics Real Estate, LLC Project  
 
Hearing Notice Published:   April 19, 2017 in the Gardner News 
 

 
 
Summary: 
 
 The City has received an application for property tax abatement from ColdPoint Logistics Real Estate, LLC.  
ColdPoint desires to construct an approximately 184,405 sq. ft. expansion to an existing 161,000 sq. f.t warehouse and cold-
storage distribution facility located at 31301 W. 181st Street, Edgerton, Kansas.  In order for the City to issue industrial 
revenue bonds and grant property tax abatement, the City must first hold a public hearing, consider the cost-benefit report 
and then approve a partial assignment of the Master Resolution of Intent. 
 
Public Hearing 
 
 A notice of the public hearing has been published at least seven days prior to the date of this meeting.  Written 
notice of the public hearing has also been provided to the County and the School District.  The Council should take 
comments from the public. 
 
Cost-Benefit Report 
 
 Columbia Capital Management, LLC has prepared a cost-benefit report for the proposed project.  The Council 
should consider the cost-benefit report and ask any questions the Council may have about the report. 
 
Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
 
 The City previously adopted a Master Resolution of Intent for the benefit of Edgerton Land Holding Company, 
LLC (“Edgerton Land”) for constructing various projects in the Logistics Park-Kansas City, and provided for the issuance 
of up to $1,000,000,000 in industrial revenue bonds.  The Master Resolution of Intent allows Edgerton Land to assign 
portions of the Master Resolution of Intent to various companies that locate within the park.  The partial assignment of the 
Master Resolution of Intent assigns $23,800,000 of the Master Resolution of Intent to ColdPoint for the purpose of 
constructing this project. 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17D 

 

RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT OF A 

RESOLUTION OF INTENT FROM EDGERTON LAND HOLDING COMPANY, 

LLC TO COLDPOINT LOGISTICS REAL ESTATE, LLC, OR ITS 

SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and thereby to further 

promote, stimulate and develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the State of Kansas; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons, 

firms or corporations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution No. 07-08-10A on July 8, 2010, as amended by 

Resolution No. 04-25-13A adopted on April 25, 2013 and Resolution No. 04-09-15A adopted on April 9, 

2015  (collectively, the “Resolution of Intent”) determining the intent of the City to issue its industrial 

revenue bonds in multiple series, the aggregate amount of all series not to exceed $1,000,000,000 (the 

“Bonds”), to finance the costs of acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving and equipping the 

Logistics Park Projects (as defined in the Resolution of Intent) for the benefit of Edgerton Land Holding 

Company, LLC (the “Developer”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Resolution of Intent permits the Developer, with the consent of the City, to 

assign a portion of its interest in the Resolution of Intent to another entity, thereby conferring on such 

entity the benefits of the Resolution of Intent and the proceedings related thereto; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer desires to assign $23,800,000 of its interest in the Resolution of 

Intent to ColdPoint Logistics Real Estate, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (the “Company”), for 

the purposes of permitting the Company to acquire, construct and equip a commercial project, consisting 

of an approximately 184,405 sq. ft. expansion to an existing approximately 161,000 sq. ft. warehouse and 

cold-storage distribution facility (the “ColdPoint Project”), located at 31301 W. 181st Street, Edgerton, 

Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to such partial assignment of the Resolution of Intent to 

the Company. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent.  The Governing Body of the City 

hereby consents to the assignment by the Developer of $23,800,000 of the Developer’s interest in the 

Resolution of Intent to the Company for the purposes of completing the ColdPoint Project, which is a 

Logistics Park Project.  The City agrees that the Company will now be entitled to the benefits of the 

Resolution of Intent to the same extent and on the same terms as the Developer with respect to the 

ColdPoint Project. 

 



 

 -2- 

Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
ColdPoint Logistics Real Estate, LLC Project 

 Section 2.  Authorization to Proceed.  The Company is authorized to proceed with the acquiring, 

constructing and equipping of the ColdPoint Project, and to advance such funds as may be necessary to 

accomplish such purposes, and, to the extent permitted by law, the City will reimburse the Company for all 

expenditures paid or incurred therefor out of the proceeds of the Bonds. 

 

 Section 3.  Benefit of Resolution.  This Resolution will inure to the benefit of the City and the 

Company.  The Company may, with the prior written consent of the City, assign its interest in this 

Resolution and the Resolution of Intent to another entity, and such assignee will be entitled to the benefits of 

this Resolution, the Resolution of Intent and the proceedings related hereto. 

 

 Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after 

its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 



!

!

 

6330 Lamar  
Suite 200 
Overland Park, Kansas 66202 

! !
 

Jeff White, Principal 
913.312.8077 
jwhite@columbiacapital.com 

!

April!18,!2017!

!

Ms.!Beth!Linn!

City!Administrator!

City!of!Edgerton!

404!East!Nelson!

Edgerton,!Kansas!66021!

!

RE:$Cost)Benefit$Analysis$for$ColdPoint$Logistics$Real$Estate,$LLC$
!

Dear!Beth:!

!

Please! find! attached! the! results! of! our! costHbenefit! analysis! related! to! the! projected!

property!tax!abatement!to!be!granted!by!the!City!to!applicant!ColdPoint!Logistics!Real!

Estate,!LLC,!which!plans!to!expand!its!existing!facility!by!adding!an!additional!184,405!

square! foot!warehousing! facility! in!Logistics!Park!Kansas!City!(LPKC).!The!purpose!of!
this!analysis!is!to!satisfy!the!City’s!requirement!pursuant!to!KSA!12H1749d!or!KSA!79H

251(a)(1)!to!undertake!a!costHbenefit!analysis!before!granting!a!property!tax!abatement.!

Consistent!with!City!policy!for!development!within!LPKC,!this!analysis!assumes!the!City!

will! grant! a! 100%!property! tax! abatement! for! 10! years!with! the! applicant! paying! an!

annual!paymentHinHlieuHofHtaxes!equal!to!$0.21!per!square!foot!on!the!expansion.!!

!

BACKGROUND 
As!part!of!negotiations!with!the!original!master!developer!on!the!potential! location!of!

LPKC! in! Edgerton,! the! Edgerton! City! Council! approved! an! incentives! program! that!

provides!tenHyear!property!tax!abatements!for!projects!locating!in!LPKC.!The!purpose!of!

these! abatements! was! to! ensure! that! rents! paid! by! the! eventual! users! of! buildings!

constructed! by! the! master! developer! would! be! competitive! against!

warehouse/distribution!developments!in!Olathe,!south!Kansas!City,!Riverside!and!those!

located! in! other! cities,! including! Dallas,! Chicago,! Memphis! and! Indianapolis.! Like!

Edgerton,!these!communities!also!have!incentives!programs!in!place!for!warehouse!and!

distribution!facilities.!

!

The! original! master! developer! reported—and! its! successor,! NorthPoint!

Development/Edgerton! Land! Holding! Company! (ELHC)! continues! to! make! the!
argument—that,! without! the! abatement! incentives,! largeHscale! warehouse! and!

distribution! facilities! would! not!materialize! in! LPKC! and! certainly! not! at! the! pace! of!

development!LPKC!has!seen!in!recent!years:!the!presence!of!the!abatements!was!and!is!

a!necessary!condition!to!the!development!of!the!project.!

!

 
 
 



  CBA for ColdPointe Ph 2 • 2 
! ! !

!

! ! ! !  
!

ABATEMENT MECHANICS 
Under! Kansas! law,! every! ad! valorem! tax! abatement! is! a! 100%! abatement.! Cities!

granting! an! abatement! have! the! right! to! negotiate! paymentsHinHlieuHofHtax! (PILOT)!
payments!from!the!abatement!beneficiary!to!reduce!the!effective!value!of!the!abatement!

to! that! party.! PILOT! payments! are! distributed! by! Kansas! counties! to! all! taxing!

jurisdictions! affected! by! the! abatement! in! the! same! proportion! as! regular! property!

taxes.!

!

Property! tax! abatements! effectively! defer! a! portion! of! the! tax! benefit! on! new!

development! for! a! period! of! up! to! 10! years.! Although! property! tax! abatements! can!

create! a! loss! of! status! quo! ante! tax! revenues! for! taxing! jurisdictions,! abatements! at!

LPKC!have!a!very!limited!impact!on!existing!tax!revenues.!Because!the!vast!majority!of!

undeveloped!land!within!the!boundaries!of!LPKC!is!classified!for!property!tax!purposes!

as!“farming!or!ranch!operations,”!status!quo!ante!property!taxes!in!the!aggregate!within!

LPKC!tend!to!total!less!than!$50!per!acre!per!year.!

!

ECONOMICS 
The! subject! property! is! approximately! 8! acres! in! size! and! will! house! an! estimated!

184,405! square! foot! distribution! and! warehousing! facility.! Pursuant! to! the! City’s!

agreement!with! the!master!developer,! this! analysis! assumes! the!City!will! provide! the!

applicant!with!a!100%!property!tax!abatement!for!10!years.!We!have!further!assumed!

that,! consistent!with! its! agreement!with! the!master! developer,! the! City!will! impose! a!

$0.21!per!square!foot!per!year!PILOT,!or!$38,725!per!year.!!

!

The!table!below!reflects!the!immediate!impact!on!property!tax/PILOT!receipts!from!the!

subject!property,!assuming!a!status!quo!ante! tax!burden!of!$50!per!acre!per!year!and!

based!upon!November!2016!levy!rates!published!by!Johnson!County.!

!
    EXISTING TAXES NEW PILOTs ANNUAL NET TAX  
ENTITY LEVY % of TOTAL  LOST PAID GAIN/(LOSS) 
State of KS 1.500 0.97%  $(4) $ 376  $ 372  
Johnson Co. 19.590 12.68%  (52)  4,910   4,857  
JCCC 9.473 6.13%  (25)  2,374   2,349  
JCPRD 3.102 2.01%  (8)  777   769  
Edgerton 33.654 21.78%  (90)  8,434   8,345  
USD 231 Uniform 20.000 12.94%  (53)  5,012   4,959  
USD 231 Capital 8.000 5.18%  (21)  2,005   1,984  
USD 231 Other 20.883 13.52%  (56)  5,234   5,178  
USD 231 Bond 18.904 12.23%  (51)  4,738   4,687  
Fire Dist #1 15.494 10.03%  (41)  3,883   3,842  
Library 3.915 2.53%  (10)  981   971  
       
 154.515 100.00%  $(413) $ 38,725  $ 38,312  
!

COST-BENEFIT ANALYSIS DETAILS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
KSA! 12H1749d(2)! requires! notification! of! anticipated! abatements! only! to! counties! or!

school!districts!affected.!As!a!result,!our!analysis!focuses!on!financial!impacts!to!the!City,!

Johnson! County! and! USD! 231! Gardner/Edgerton! Schools! (the!District).!We! have! not!
calculated! the! costHbenefit! on! other! taxing! jurisdictions.! State! law! also! requires! the!

analysis! to! include! “the! effect! of! the! exemption! on! state! revenues.”! Our! modeling!

includes!such!an!estimate.!

!



  CBA for ColdPointe Ph 2 • 3 
! ! !

!

! ! ! !  
!

Our! proprietary! costHbenefit! modeling! relies! on! a! number! of! key! assumptions! in! the!

calculation! of! net! present! value! benefit! to! the! City,! Johnson! County! and! the! District.!

Most!of!our!assumptions!are!derived!from!public!information,!although!some!inputs!are!

based! upon! dialogue! with! subject! matter! experts,! including! staff! of! the! Kansas!

Department!of!Revenue.!Some!of!these!key!assumptions!include:!

!

• An!evaluation!of! the!direct! costs!and!benefits!of! the!project.!Columbia’s!model!

does! not! include! indirect! or! “spinHoff”! effects! as! a! result! of! inputHoutput!

multipliers.!

!

• A! tenHyear! analysis! timeframe! for! each! individual! project,! matching! the!

maximum!permitted!term!of!the!abatement.!

!

• Direct!costs!to!the!City,!the!County,!the!school!district!and!the!State!as!estimated!

by! Columbia! based! upon! the! financial! reports,! expert! analysis! and/or!

conversations!with!key!staff!members!within!those!agencies!and!at!the!State!of!

Kansas.!Please!note!our!analysis!assumes!the!return!of!a!school!finance!formula!

that!provides!aid!to!the!District!on!a!per!pupil!basis!(see!below).!

!

• Where! applicable,! reliance! upon! statistical! data! as! reported! in! the! 2010! US!

Census.!

!

• The! use! of! a! discount! rate! comprised! of! two! components:! a! riskHfree! rate! of!

return! (the! current! yield! of! the! onHtheHrun! 10Hyear! US! Treasury)! plus! a! risk!

premium!of! two! (2)! percent.! The! value! of! the! discount! rate! is! a! proxy! for! the!

opportunity! cost! of! the! City! (and! other! agencies)! of! foregoing! the! future!

property!and/or!sales!tax!revenues!that!would!be!generated!by!the!development.!

Thought!of!another!way,!if!the!City!had!those!revenues!in!hand!and!placed!them!

in!an!alternative! investment!with! the!same!risk!characteristics,!what!would!be!

its!expected!rate!of!return?!

!

TREATMENT OF SCHOOL FINANCE FORMULA 
As!of!the!date!of!this!analysis,!the!mechanics!of!public!school!finances!in!Kansas!remain!

in! flux.! The! Kansas! legislature,! through! special! session! during! the! summer! of! 2016,!

resolved!immediate!judicial!concerns!about!funding!equity!that!might!have!delayed!the!

start!of!the!2016/17!school!year.!But,!lower!Kansas!courts!found!that!the!current!block!

grant! funding!mechanism! is! constitutionally! flawed! and! falls! hundreds! of!millions! of!

dollars! short!of! the!amount!of! state!aid! to! schools!necessary! to! satisfy! the! “adequate”!

funding!requirement!within!the!state!constitution.!The!Kansas!Supreme!Court!affirmed!

those! findings! on! March! 2,! 2017,! giving! the! legislature! a! June! 30,! 2017,! deadline! to!

resolve!the!funding!inadequacy.!!

!

For! the! purposes! of! our! analysis,!we! have! assumed! the! existence! of! a! school! funding!

formula!that! increases!or!decreases!district!state!aid!based!upon!the!district’s!student!

enrollment.! The! district! court’s! findings! on! the! funding! adequacy! issue! were!

particularly! critical! of! the! current! block! grant! formula’s! failure! to! recognize! and!

compensate!schools!for!the!impacts!of!changes!in!enrollment.!Our!costHbenefit!modeling!



  CBA for ColdPointe Ph 2 • 4 
! ! !

!

! ! ! !  
!

assumes!a!return!to!the!capitationHbased!funding!approach!that!has!prevailed!in!Kansas!

since!the!1990s.!

!

For!the!treatment!of!costs!in!the!model,!we!have!assumed!that!the!addition!of!one!new!

child! in! the! schools! increases! the! District’s! costs! by! an! average! cost! to! educate! the!

remainder! of! the! students! currently! within! the! District.! (This! approach! is! consistent!

with!our! treatment!of!new!city!and!county!residents!on!city!and!county!budgets.)!For!

small!changes!in!student!enrollment,!this!approach!likely!overHstates!the!cost!impact!to!

the!District:!a!District!with!5,500!students! is!very! likely! to!spend! the!same!amount! in!

the!aggregate!to!educate!those!children!as!it!would!if!its!enrollment!were!5,501!instead.!

!

It!is!important!to!note!that,!under!the!state!constitution,!the!obligation!of!funding!public!

schools! is! fundamentally! the! State’s.! The! majority! of! the! local! property! tax! levies!

imposed!by!the!District!automatically!adjust!to!provide!a!level!of!funding!prescribed!by!

school! funding! laws! or! regulations.! Put! another! way,! as! assessed! valuations! decline,!
property! tax! levy! rates! increase! to! produce! required! revenue;! similarly,! as! assessed!
valuations!increase,!property!tax!levy!levies!rollHdown!to!limit!revenue!collected.!This!is!

how,!for!instance,!school!districts!are!able!to!execute!“no!tax!increase”!bond!issues—as!

assessed!valuations! increase,! existing!debt! service! levies!produce!higher!property! tax!

receipts,! providing! schools! with! additional! financial! resources! to! pay! principal! and!

interest!on!debt!even!though!the!levy!rate!itself!has!not!changed.!

!

The! one! exception! to! this! general! rule! is! the! levy! the!District!may! impose! for! capital!

purposes.!That!levy!is!capped!under!current!state!law!at!eight!mills.!Because!the!District!

imposes!the! levy!at! the!eightHmill! limit,!any!reduction! in!assessed!value! in!the!District!

reduces! tax! dollars! available! to! the! District.! Similarly,! increases! in! assessed! value!

produce!more!dollars!for!the!purposes!permitted!related!to!that!levy.!

!

As! demonstrated! in! the! “Economics”! section! above,! we! expect! most! projects! within!

LPKC! to! produce! positive! net! property! tax/PILOT! revenues! for! the! District! (and! all!

other! taxing! entities)! compared! to! existing,! undeveloped! property,! even! during! the!

term!of!the!tax!abatement!on!such!projects.!

!

USING THE COST-BENEFIT MODELING RESULTS 
The! output! of! the! model! is! presented! as! the! net! present! value! benefit/(cost)! of! the!

project!for!the!City,!County!and!school!district!over!the!10Hyear!life!of!the!abatement!on!

each!project.!The!net!benefit!(or,!if!negative,!cost)!of!the!incentive!package!is!presented!

in! today’s! dollars.! The! estimated! impact! on! State! revenues! is! presented! in! nominal!

(future!value)!terms.!We!also!provide!an!estimated!future!value!project!contribution!to!

the!City’s!Public!Infrastructure!Fund!(PIF).!While!the!modeling!shows!a!significant!net!
present!value!benefit!to!the!City,!it!is!important!to!note!that!the$majority$of$the$City’s$net$
benefit$is$reinvested$in$LPKC$through$the$PIF.!
!

In! the! preparation! of! this! costHbenefit! analysis,! Columbia! has! relied! upon! the!

information!provided!to!it!by!applicant!and!has!not!independently!verified!or!validated!

these!data.!!The!City!must!draw!its!own!conclusions!as!to!the!reliability!of!these!data.!!

!



  CBA for ColdPointe Ph 2 • 5 
! ! !

!

! ! ! !  
!

Finally,! the! intent! of! this! analysis! and! of! the! applicable! statutes! is! to! inform! the!

governing! body’s! policy! debate! about! the! value! of! the! abatement! incentive! it! is!

providing!to!the!applicant.!The!project’s!generation!of!a!net!present!value!benefit!to!the!

agencies!affected!should!be!but!one!of!the!many!factors!in!the!governing!body’s!decision!

about!whether!and!how!much!incentive!to!provide!to!any!applicant.!

!

Thank!you!in!advance!for!your!thoughtful!consideration!of!the!analysis!attached.!Please!

let!me!know!if!you!have!any!questions.!

!

Respectfully!submitted,!

COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC 
!

!

!

Jeff!White!

Principal$



COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC DATE OF ANALYSIS: 4/19/17

SUMMARY OF COSTS AND BENEFITS 
City of Edgerton, Kansas

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Application Date: 4/18/17 Summary of Incentives Provided:
Firm Name: ColdPoint Logistics Real Estate, LLC
Firm Address: 4825 NW 41 St., Suite 500

Riverside, Missouri 64150

Firm Contact: Patrick Robinson Building Size (sf):
913.915.7150

SUMMARY OF INCENTIVE PACKAGE (LOCAL GOVERNMENT IMPACTS ONLY): PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES RECEIPTS:

City County School
Year (%) ($) (%) ($) County School ($) ($) ($)

2 100 480,698 100 0 0 0 8,434 4,910 16,989
3 100 480,698 100 0 0 0 8,434 4,910 16,989
4 100 480,698 100 0 0 0 8,434 4,910 16,989
5 100 480,698 100 0 0 0 8,434 4,910 16,989
6 100 480,698 100 0 0 0 8,434 4,910 16,989
7 100 480,698 100 0 0 0 8,434 4,910 16,989
8 100 480,698 100 0 0 0 8,434 4,910 16,989
9 100 480,698 100 0 0 0 8,434 4,910 16,989

10 100 480,698 100 0 0 0 8,434 4,910 16,989
11 100 480,698 100 0 0 0 8,434 4,910 16,989

SUMMARY OF PRESENT VALUE BENEFITS:

Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV
Year Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit

2 230,604 147,743 82,861 76,345 86,514 97,496 -10,982 -10,118 306,260 290,997 15,262 14,062
3 229,673 147,743 81,930 72,458 85,400 97,496 -12,096 -10,698 306,260 290,997 15,262 13,498
4 229,703 147,743 81,960 69,577 85,464 97,496 -12,032 -10,214 306,260 290,997 15,262 12,956
5 229,735 147,743 81,992 66,811 85,532 97,496 -11,964 -9,749 306,260 290,997 15,262 12,436
6 229,768 147,743 82,025 64,156 85,604 97,496 -11,893 -9,302 306,260 290,997 15,262 11,937
7 229,803 147,743 82,060 61,608 85,679 97,496 -11,818 -8,872 306,260 290,997 15,262 11,458
8 229,840 147,743 82,097 59,163 85,757 97,496 -11,739 -8,460 306,260 290,997 15,262 10,999
9 229,878 147,743 82,135 56,816 85,840 97,496 -11,657 -8,063 306,260 290,997 15,262 10,557

10 229,919 147,743 82,176 54,563 85,926 97,496 -11,570 -7,682 306,260 290,997 15,262 10,134
11 229,961 147,743 82,218 52,401 86,017 97,496 -11,479 -7,316 306,260 290,997 15,262 9,727

2,298,883 1,477,430 821,453 633,899 857,734 974,963 -117,229 -90,475 3,062,596 2,909,975 152,621 117,765

SUMMARY OF ECONOMIC IMPACT (over 10-year period):

Number of jobs to be created : 20

Number of new residents:
   City 4
   County 7
   School District 7

Expected 10-Year Contribution to PIF: 690,096$                       

Impact of exemption on state revenues: (59,575)$                        

Property Tax Abatement Construction Sales Tax Abatement Direct Incentives

County Summary

0
0
0
0

City Summary

City

100% real property tax abatement for a 10 year period, as well as a construction sales tax exemption for materials, with a PILOT 
payment of $0.21/s.f. per year.

0
0

School District Summary

0
0
0
0

184,405                



























































































































































RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17E 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE ASSIGNMENT OF A BASE 

LEASE, LEASE AGREEMENT AND OTHER BOND DOCUMENTS IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS 

(ELHC II, LLC PROJECT), SERIES 2013, AND AUTHORIZING A 

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT, ESTOPPEL AND SUBORDINATION 

AGREEMENT 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”) is a duly organized and existing 

municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City issued its Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC II, LLC Project), Series 2013 

(the “Bonds”), in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $20,000,000, pursuant to a Trust Indenture 

dated as of September 1, 2013 (the “Indenture”), between the City and UMB Bank, n.a., as trustee (the 

“Trustee”), for the purpose of acquiring, purchasing, improving, equipping and constructing a commercial 

project, consisting of an approximately 326,650 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility, located at 31426 

W. 191st Street, Edgerton, Kansas (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Project was leased by ELHC II, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company 

(“ELHC”), to the City pursuant to a Base Lease Agreement dated as of September 1, 2013 (the “Base 

Lease”), between ELHC and the City, and the Project was subleased by the City to ELHC pursuant to a 

Lease Agreement dated as of September 1, 2013 (the “Lease Agreement”), between the City and the 

Assignor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Base Lease and Section 13.1 of the Lease 

Agreement, the Assignor may assign the Base Lease and the Lease Agreement only with the written 

consent of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Assignor is requesting the City’s consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s 

interest under the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, the Performance Agreement dated as of 

September 1, 2013 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and Assignor, the Origination Fee 

Agreement dated as of September 1, 2013 (the “Origination Fee Agreement”), between the City and the 

Assignor, the Bond Purchase Agreement dated September 23, 2013 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), 

among the City, the Assignor, as purchaser, and the Assignor, as the company, and all other documents 

executed in connection with the Bonds that are included in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds 

(collectively, the “Other Bond Documents”), to IPII 191 Street LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 

(the “Assignee”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s interest under the 

Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee Agreement, the Bond 

Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents to the Assignee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in connection with the assignment, Assignee has requested that the City deliver a 

collateral assignment, an estoppel and a subordination agreement, and the City desires to approve such 

documents; 
 



2 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body of the City hereby consents to the 

assignment of the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee 

Agreement, Bond Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents by the Assignor to the Assignee.  

The foregoing consents are contingent upon the satisfaction of all other requirements for assignments 

expressly set forth in the Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 2. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body 

hereby approves of the form of the Assignment and Assumption of IRB Documents (the “Assignment”), in 

substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at 

this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the consent to the 

Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to 

and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to 

attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the Assignment. 

 

 Section 3. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Collateral Assignment.  The 

Governing Body hereby approves of the form of the City consent to Collateral Assignment of IRB 

Documents (the “Collateral Assignment”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented 

to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution 

thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute and deliver the consent to the Collateral Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act 

and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The 

City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the consent to the Collateral Assignment. 

 

 Section 4. Authorization and Execution of Estoppel.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Consent, Agreement and Estoppel Certificate (the “Estoppel”), in substantially 

the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting 

(a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The 

Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Estoppel for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Estoppel. 

 

 Section 5. Authorization and Execution of Subordination.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Subordination/Attornment Agreement (the “Subordination”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a 

copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor 

of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Subordination for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Subordination. 

 

 Section 6. Further Authority. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

deliver such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out 

and comply with the intent of this Resolution (copies of said documents shall be filed in the records of the 



3 

 

City) for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and 

directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City to such other documents, certificates and instruments as 

may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately 

after its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC II, LLC Project 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17F 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO A FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL BASE 

LEASE, FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT AND FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (ELHC IV, LLC 

PROJECT), SERIES 2014 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and develop the 

general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and to further promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the state of Kansas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons or entities; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has previously issued its $25,000,000 Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC IV, LLC 

Project), Series 2014 (the “Bonds”), for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, installing and equipping a 

574,111 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “Project”) for the benefit of ELHC IV, LLC, a Kansas 

limited liability company (the “Company”); 

 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the City entered into, among other 

documents, (a) a Base Lease Agreement dated as of May 1, 2014 (the “Base Lease”), between the Company 

and the City, whereby the Company leased certain land to the City on which the Project would be constructed, 

(b) a Lease Agreement dated as of May 1, 2014 (the “Lease Agreement”), between the City and the Company, 

whereby the City leased the Project to the Company, and (c) an Amended and Restated Performance 

Agreement dated as of September 1, 2015 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and the 

Company, whereby the parties agreed to the terms of the real property tax abatement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested and the City has agreed to amend the legal descriptions 

attached to the Base Lease, Lease Agreement and Performance Agreement; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. First Supplemental Base Lease.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the form of 

the First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Base Lease”), in substantially the form 

attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Base Lease for and on behalf of and 

as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  

The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the First Supplemental Base Lease. 

 

 Section 2.  First Supplemental Lease Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the 

form of the First Supplemental Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Lease Agreement”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 



2 

 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Lease Agreement for and on behalf 

of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if 

required, to the First Supplemental Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 3. First Amendment to Performance Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the First Amendment to Performance Agreement (the “First Amendment to Performance 

Agreement”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of 

the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Amendment to 

Performance Agreement for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form 

presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed 

to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 4. Further Authority.  The City shall, and the officers, employees and agents of the City 

are hereby authorized and directed to, take such action, expend such funds and execute such other documents, 

certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this 

Resolution and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the City with respect to the First Amendment 

to Base Lease, First Amendment to Lease Agreement and First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after its 

adoption by the City Council.  

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

(Seal)       Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC IV, LLC Project 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17G 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE ASSIGNMENT OF A BASE 

LEASE, LEASE AGREEMENT AND OTHER BOND DOCUMENTS IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS 

(ELHC IV, LLC PROJECT), SERIES 2014, AND AUTHORIZING A 

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT, ESTOPPEL AND SUBORDINATION 

AGREEMENT 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”) is a duly organized and existing 

municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City issued its Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC IV, LLC Project), Series 2014 

(the “Bonds”), in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $25,000,000, pursuant to a Trust Indenture 

dated as of May 1, 2014 (the “Indenture”), between the City and UMB Bank, n.a., as trustee (the 

“Trustee”), for the purpose of acquiring, purchasing, improving, equipping and constructing a commercial 

project, consisting of an approximately 574,111 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility, located at 18905 

Kill Creek Road, Edgerton, Kansas (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Project was leased by ELHC IV, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company 

(“ELHC”), to the City pursuant to a Base Lease Agreement dated as of May 1, 2014, as supplemented and 

amended by a First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (together, the “Base Lease”), between ELHC 

and the City, and the Project was subleased by the City to ELHC pursuant to a Lease Agreement dated as 

of May 1, 2014, as supplemented and amended by a First Supplemental Lease Agreement (together, the 

“Lease Agreement”), between the City and the Assignor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Base Lease and Section 13.1 of the Lease 

Agreement, the Assignor may assign the Base Lease and the Lease Agreement only with the written 

consent of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Assignor is requesting the City’s consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s 

interest under the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, the Amended and Restated Performance 

Agreement dated as of September 1, 2015 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and 

Assignor, the Amended and Restated Origination Fee Agreement dated as of September 1, 2015 (the 

“Origination Fee Agreement”), between the City and the Assignor, the Bond Purchase Agreement dated 

April 30, 2014 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), among the City, the Assignor, as purchaser, and the 

Assignor, as the company, and all other documents executed in connection with the Bonds that are 

included in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds (collectively, the “Other Bond Documents”), to 

IPIV Kill Creek LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Assignee”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s interest under the 

Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee Agreement, the Bond 

Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents to the Assignee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in connection with the assignment, Assignee has requested that the City deliver a 

collateral assignment, an estoppel and a subordination agreement, and the City desires to approve such 

documents; 
 



2 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body of the City hereby consents to the 

assignment of the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee 

Agreement, Bond Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents by the Assignor to the Assignee.  

The foregoing consents are contingent upon the satisfaction of all other requirements for assignments 

expressly set forth in the Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 2. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body 

hereby approves of the form of the Assignment and Assumption of IRB Documents (the “Assignment”), in 

substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at 

this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the consent to the 

Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to 

and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to 

attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the Assignment. 

 

 Section 3. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Collateral Assignment.  The 

Governing Body hereby approves of the form of the City consent to Collateral Assignment of IRB 

Documents (the “Collateral Assignment”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented 

to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution 

thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute and deliver the consent to the Collateral Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act 

and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The 

City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the consent to the Collateral Assignment. 

 

 Section 4. Authorization and Execution of Estoppel.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Consent, Agreement and Estoppel Certificate (the “Estoppel”), in substantially 

the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting 

(a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The 

Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Estoppel for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Estoppel. 

 

 Section 5. Authorization and Execution of Subordination.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Subordination/Attornment Agreement (the “Subordination”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a 

copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor 

of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Subordination for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Subordination. 

 

 Section 6. Further Authority. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

deliver such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out 

and comply with the intent of this Resolution (copies of said documents shall be filed in the records of the 



3 

 

City) for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and 

directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City to such other documents, certificates and instruments as 

may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately 

after its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC IV, LLC Project 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17H 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO A FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL BASE 

LEASE, FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT AND FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (ELHC V, LLC 

PROJECT), SERIES 2016 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and develop the 

general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and to further promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the state of Kansas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons or entities; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has previously issued its $31,500,000 Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC V, LLC 

Project), Series 2016 (the “Bonds”), for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, installing and equipping a 

653,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “Project”) for the benefit of ELHC V, LLC, a Kansas 

limited liability company (the “Company”); 

 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the City entered into, among other 

documents, (a) a Base Lease Agreement dated as of April 1, 2016 (the “Base Lease”), between the Company 

and the City, whereby the Company leased certain land to the City on which the Project would be constructed, 

(b) a Lease Agreement dated as of April 1, 2016 (the “Lease Agreement”), between the City and the Company, 

whereby the City leased the Project to the Company, and (c) a Performance Agreement dated as of April 1, 

2016 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and the Company, whereby the parties agreed to the 

terms of the real property tax abatement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested and the City has agreed to amend the legal descriptions 

attached to the Base Lease, Lease Agreement and Performance Agreement; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. First Supplemental Base Lease.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the form of 

the First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Base Lease”), in substantially the form 

attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Base Lease for and on behalf of and 

as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  

The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the First Supplemental Base Lease. 

 

 Section 2.  First Supplemental Lease Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the 

form of the First Supplemental Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Lease Agreement”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 



2 

 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Lease Agreement for and on behalf 

of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if 

required, to the First Supplemental Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 3. First Amendment to Performance Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the First Amendment to Performance Agreement (the “First Amendment to Performance 

Agreement”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of 

the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Amendment to 

Performance Agreement for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form 

presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed 

to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 4. Further Authority.  The City shall, and the officers, employees and agents of the City 

are hereby authorized and directed to, take such action, expend such funds and execute such other documents, 

certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this 

Resolution and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the City with respect to the First Amendment 

to Base Lease, First Amendment to Lease Agreement and First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after its 

adoption by the City Council.  

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

(Seal)       Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC V, LLC Project 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17I 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE ASSIGNMENT OF A BASE 

LEASE, LEASE AGREEMENT AND OTHER BOND DOCUMENTS IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS 

(ELHC V, LLC PROJECT), SERIES 2016, AND AUTHORIZING A 

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT, ESTOPPEL AND SUBORDINATION 

AGREEMENT 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”) is a duly organized and existing 

municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City issued its Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC V, LLC Project), Series 2016 

(the “Bonds”), in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $31,500,000, pursuant to a Trust Indenture 

dated as of April 1, 2016 (the “Indenture”), between the City and UMB Bank, n.a., as trustee (the 

“Trustee”), for the purpose of acquiring, purchasing, improving, equipping and constructing a commercial 

project, consisting of an approximately 653,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility, located at 31201 

W. 187th Street, Edgerton, Kansas (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Project was leased by ELHC V, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company 

(“ELHC”), to the City pursuant to a Base Lease Agreement dated as of April 1, 2016, as supplemented 

and amended by a First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (together, the “Base Lease”), between 

ELHC and the City, and the Project was subleased by the City to ELHC pursuant to a Lease Agreement 

dated as of April 1, 2016, as supplemented and amended by a First Supplemental Lease Agreement 

(together, the “Lease Agreement”), between the City and the Assignor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Base Lease and Section 13.1 of the Lease 

Agreement, the Assignor may assign the Base Lease and the Lease Agreement only with the written 

consent of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Assignor is requesting the City’s consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s 

interest under the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, the Performance Agreement dated as of April 

1, 2016 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and Assignor, the Origination Fee Agreement 

dated as of April 1, 2016 (the “Origination Fee Agreement”), between the City and the Assignor, the Bond 

Purchase Agreement dated April 6, 2016 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), among the City, the Assignor, 

as purchaser, and the Assignor, as the company, and all other documents executed in connection with the 

Bonds that are included in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds (collectively, the “Other Bond 

Documents”), to IPV 187 Street LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Assignee”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s interest under the 

Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee Agreement, the Bond 

Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents to the Assignee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in connection with the assignment, Assignee has requested that the City deliver a 

collateral assignment, an estoppel and a subordination agreement, and the City desires to approve such 

documents; 
 



2 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body of the City hereby consents to the 

assignment of the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee 

Agreement, Bond Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents by the Assignor to the Assignee.  

The foregoing consents are contingent upon the satisfaction of all other requirements for assignments 

expressly set forth in the Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 2. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body 

hereby approves of the form of the Assignment and Assumption of IRB Documents (the “Assignment”), in 

substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at 

this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the consent to the 

Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to 

and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to 

attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the Assignment. 

 

 Section 3. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Collateral Assignment.  The 

Governing Body hereby approves of the form of the City consent to Collateral Assignment of IRB 

Documents (the “Collateral Assignment”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented 

to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution 

thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute and deliver the consent to the Collateral Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act 

and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The 

City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the consent to the Collateral Assignment. 

 

 Section 4. Authorization and Execution of Estoppel.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Consent, Agreement and Estoppel Certificate (the “Estoppel”), in substantially 

the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting 

(a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The 

Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Estoppel for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Estoppel. 

 

 Section 5. Authorization and Execution of Subordination.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Subordination/Attornment Agreement (the “Subordination”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a 

copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor 

of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Subordination for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Subordination. 

 

 Section 6. Further Authority. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

deliver such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out 

and comply with the intent of this Resolution (copies of said documents shall be filed in the records of the 



3 

 

City) for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and 

directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City to such other documents, certificates and instruments as 

may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately 

after its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC V, LLC Project 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17J 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO A FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL BASE 

LEASE, FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT AND FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (ELHC XI, LLC 

PROJECT), SERIES 2015 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and develop the 

general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and to further promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the state of Kansas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons or entities; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has previously issued its $34,000,000 Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XI, LLC 

Project), Series 2015 (the “Bonds”), for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, installing and equipping a 

765,160 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “Project”) for the benefit of ELHC XI, LLC, a Kansas 

limited liability company (the “Company”); 

 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the City entered into, among other 

documents, (a) a Base Lease Agreement dated as of February 1, 2015 (the “Base Lease”), between the 

Company and the City, whereby the Company leased certain land to the City on which the Project would be 

constructed, (b) a Lease Agreement dated as of February 1, 2015 (the “Lease Agreement”), between the City 

and the Company, whereby the City leased the Project to the Company, and (c) an Amended and Restated 

Performance Agreement dated as of September 1, 2015 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and 

the Company, whereby the parties agreed to the terms of the real property tax abatement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested and the City has agreed to amend the legal descriptions 

attached to the Base Lease, Lease Agreement and Performance Agreement; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. First Supplemental Base Lease.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the form of 

the First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Base Lease”), in substantially the form 

attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Base Lease for and on behalf of and 

as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  

The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the First Supplemental Base Lease. 

 

 Section 2.  First Supplemental Lease Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the 

form of the First Supplemental Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Lease Agreement”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 



2 

 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Lease Agreement for and on behalf 

of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if 

required, to the First Supplemental Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 3. First Amendment to Performance Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the First Amendment to Performance Agreement (the “First Amendment to Performance 

Agreement”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of 

the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Amendment to 

Performance Agreement for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form 

presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed 

to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 4. Further Authority.  The City shall, and the officers, employees and agents of the City 

are hereby authorized and directed to, take such action, expend such funds and execute such other documents, 

certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this 

Resolution and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the City with respect to the First Amendment 

to Base Lease, First Amendment to Lease Agreement and First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after its 

adoption by the City Council.  

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

(Seal)       Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XI, LLC Project 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17K 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE ASSIGNMENT OF A BASE 

LEASE, LEASE AGREEMENT AND OTHER BOND DOCUMENTS IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS 

(ELHC XI, LLC PROJECT), SERIES 2015, AND AUTHORIZING A 

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT, ESTOPPEL AND SUBORDINATION 

AGREEMENT 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”) is a duly organized and existing 

municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City issued its Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XI, LLC Project), Series 2015 

(the “Bonds”), in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $34,000,000, pursuant to a Trust Indenture 

dated as of February 1, 2015 (the “Indenture”), between the City and UMB Bank, n.a., as trustee (the 

“Trustee”), for the purpose of acquiring, purchasing, improving, equipping and constructing a commercial 

project, consisting of an approximately 765,160 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility, located at 30901 

W. 191st Street, Edgerton, Kansas (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Project was leased by ELHC XI, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company 

(“ELHC”), to the City pursuant to a Base Lease Agreement dated as of February 1, 2015, as supplemented 

and amended by a First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (together, the “Base Lease”), between 

ELHC and the City, and the Project was subleased by the City to ELHC pursuant to a Lease Agreement 

dated as of February 1, 2015, as supplemented and amended by a First Supplemental Lease Agreement 

(together, the “Lease Agreement”), between the City and the Assignor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Base Lease and Section 13.1 of the Lease 

Agreement, the Assignor may assign the Base Lease and the Lease Agreement only with the written 

consent of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Assignor is requesting the City’s consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s 

interest under the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, the Amended and Restated Performance 

Agreement dated as of September 1, 2015 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and 

Assignor, the Amended and Restated Origination Fee Agreement dated as of September 1, 2015 (the 

“Origination Fee Agreement”), between the City and the Assignor, the Bond Purchase Agreement dated 

February 23, 2015 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), among the City, the Assignor, as purchaser, and the 

Assignor, as the company, and all other documents executed in connection with the Bonds that are 

included in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds (collectively, the “Other Bond Documents”), to 

IPXI 191 Street LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Assignee”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s interest under the 

Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee Agreement, the Bond 

Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents to the Assignee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in connection with the assignment, Assignee has requested that the City deliver a 

collateral assignment, an estoppel and a subordination agreement, and the City desires to approve such 

documents; 
 



2 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body of the City hereby consents to the 

assignment of the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee 

Agreement, Bond Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents by the Assignor to the Assignee.  

The foregoing consents are contingent upon the satisfaction of all other requirements for assignments 

expressly set forth in the Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 2. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body 

hereby approves of the form of the Assignment and Assumption of IRB Documents (the “Assignment”), in 

substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at 

this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the consent to the 

Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to 

and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to 

attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the Assignment. 

 

 Section 3. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Collateral Assignment.  The 

Governing Body hereby approves of the form of the City consent to Collateral Assignment of IRB 

Documents (the “Collateral Assignment”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented 

to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution 

thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute and deliver the consent to the Collateral Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act 

and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The 

City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the consent to the Collateral Assignment. 

 

 Section 4. Authorization and Execution of Estoppel.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Consent, Agreement and Estoppel Certificate (the “Estoppel”), in substantially 

the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting 

(a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The 

Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Estoppel for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Estoppel. 

 

 Section 5. Authorization and Execution of Subordination.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Subordination/Attornment Agreement (the “Subordination”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a 

copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor 

of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Subordination for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Subordination. 

 

 Section 6. Further Authority. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

deliver such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out 

and comply with the intent of this Resolution (copies of said documents shall be filed in the records of the 



3 

 

City) for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and 

directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City to such other documents, certificates and instruments as 

may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately 

after its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XI, LLC Project 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17L 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO A FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL BASE 

LEASE, FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT AND FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (ELHC XII, LLC 

PROJECT), SERIES 2015 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and develop the 

general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and to further promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the state of Kansas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons or entities; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has previously issued its $29,000,000 Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XII, LLC 

Project), Series 2015 (the “Bonds”), for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, installing and equipping a 

657,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “Project”) for the benefit of ELHC XII, LLC, a Kansas 

limited liability company (the “Company”); 

 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the City entered into, among other 

documents, (a) a Base Lease Agreement dated as of February 1, 2015 (the “Base Lease”), between the 

Company and the City, whereby the Company leased certain land to the City on which the Project would be 

constructed, (b) a Lease Agreement dated as of February 1, 2015 (the “Lease Agreement”), between the City 

and the Company, whereby the City leased the Project to the Company, and (c) an Amended and Restated 

Performance Agreement dated as of September 1, 2015 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and 

the Company, whereby the parties agreed to the terms of the real property tax abatement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested and the City has agreed to amend the legal descriptions 

attached to the Base Lease, Lease Agreement and Performance Agreement; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. First Supplemental Base Lease.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the form of 

the First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Base Lease”), in substantially the form 

attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Base Lease for and on behalf of and 

as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  

The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the First Supplemental Base Lease. 

 

 Section 2.  First Supplemental Lease Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the 

form of the First Supplemental Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Lease Agreement”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 



2 

 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Lease Agreement for and on behalf 

of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if 

required, to the First Supplemental Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 3. First Amendment to Performance Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the First Amendment to Performance Agreement (the “First Amendment to Performance 

Agreement”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of 

the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Amendment to 

Performance Agreement for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form 

presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed 

to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 4. Further Authority.  The City shall, and the officers, employees and agents of the City 

are hereby authorized and directed to, take such action, expend such funds and execute such other documents, 

certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this 

Resolution and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the City with respect to the First Amendment 

to Base Lease, First Amendment to Lease Agreement and First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after its 

adoption by the City Council.  

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

(Seal)       Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XII, LLC Project 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17M 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE ASSIGNMENT OF A BASE 

LEASE, LEASE AGREEMENT AND OTHER BOND DOCUMENTS IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS 

(ELHC XII, LLC PROJECT), SERIES 2015, AND AUTHORIZING A 

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT, ESTOPPEL AND SUBORDINATION 

AGREEMENT 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”) is a duly organized and existing 

municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City issued its Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XII, LLC Project), Series 2015 

(the “Bonds”), in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $29,000,000, pursuant to a Trust Indenture 

dated as of February 1, 2015 (the “Indenture”), between the City and UMB Bank, n.a., as trustee (the 

“Trustee”), for the purpose of acquiring, purchasing, improving, equipping and constructing a commercial 

project, consisting of an approximately 657,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility, located at 30801 

W. 191st Street, Edgerton, Kansas (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Project was leased by ELHC XII, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company 

(“ELHC”), to the City pursuant to a Base Lease Agreement dated as of February 1, 2015, as supplemented 

and amended by a First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (together, the “Base Lease”), between 

ELHC and the City, and the Project was subleased by the City to ELHC pursuant to a Lease Agreement 

dated as of February 1, 2015, as supplemented and amended by a First Supplemental Lease Agreement 

(together, the “Lease Agreement”), between the City and the Assignor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Base Lease and Section 13.1 of the Lease 

Agreement, the Assignor may assign the Base Lease and the Lease Agreement only with the written 

consent of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Assignor is requesting the City’s consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s 

interest under the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, the Amended and Restated Performance 

Agreement dated as of September 1, 2015 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and 

Assignor, the Amended and Restated Origination Fee Agreement dated as of September 1, 2015 (the 

“Origination Fee Agreement”), between the City and the Assignor, the Bond Purchase Agreement dated 

February 23, 2015 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), among the City, the Assignor, as purchaser, and the 

Assignor, as the company, and all other documents executed in connection with the Bonds that are 

included in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds (collectively, the “Other Bond Documents”), to 

IPXII 191 Street LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Assignee”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s interest under the 

Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee Agreement, the Bond 

Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents to the Assignee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in connection with the assignment, Assignee has requested that the City deliver a 

collateral assignment, an estoppel and a subordination agreement, and the City desires to approve such 

documents; 
 



2 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body of the City hereby consents to the 

assignment of the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee 

Agreement, Bond Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents by the Assignor to the Assignee.  

The foregoing consents are contingent upon the satisfaction of all other requirements for assignments 

expressly set forth in the Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 2. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body 

hereby approves of the form of the Assignment and Assumption of IRB Documents (the “Assignment”), in 

substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at 

this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the consent to the 

Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to 

and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to 

attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the Assignment. 

 

 Section 3. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Collateral Assignment.  The 

Governing Body hereby approves of the form of the City consent to Collateral Assignment of IRB 

Documents (the “Collateral Assignment”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented 

to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution 

thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute and deliver the consent to the Collateral Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act 

and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The 

City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the consent to the Collateral Assignment. 

 

 Section 4. Authorization and Execution of Estoppel.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Consent, Agreement and Estoppel Certificate (the “Estoppel”), in substantially 

the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting 

(a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The 

Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Estoppel for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Estoppel. 

 

 Section 5. Authorization and Execution of Subordination.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Subordination/Attornment Agreement (the “Subordination”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a 

copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor 

of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Subordination for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Subordination. 

 

 Section 6. Further Authority. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

deliver such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out 

and comply with the intent of this Resolution (copies of said documents shall be filed in the records of the 



3 

 

City) for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and 

directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City to such other documents, certificates and instruments as 

may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately 

after its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XII, LLC Project 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17N 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO A SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL BASE 

LEASE, SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT AND FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (ELHC XIV, LLC 

PROJECT), SERIES 2015 AND SERIES 2016 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and develop the 

general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and to further promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the state of Kansas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons or entities; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has previously issued its $38,000,000 Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XIV, 

LLC Project), Series 2015 (the “Series 2015 Bonds”), for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, installing and 

equipping a 822,500 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “Project”) for the benefit of ELHC XIV, 

LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (the “Company”); 

 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Series 2015 Bonds, the City entered into, among 

other documents, (a) a Base Lease Agreement dated as of  December 1, 2015 (the “Base Lease”), between the 

Company and the City, whereby the Company leased certain land to the City on which the Project would be 

constructed, (b) a Lease Agreement dated as of December 1, 2015 (the “Lease Agreement”), between the City 

and the Company, whereby the City leased the Project to the Company, and (c) a Performance Agreement 

dated as of December 1, 2015 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and the Company, whereby 

the parties agreed to the terms of the real property tax abatement; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to finance the completion of the Project, the City issued its $25,000,000 Industrial 

Revenue Bonds (ELHC XIV, LLC Project), Series 2016 (the “Series 2016 Bonds”), and in connection with the 

issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds the City entered into (a) a First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement dated 

as of September 1, 2016 (the “Supplemental Base Lease”), between the Company and the City, and (b) a First 

Supplemental Lease Agreement dated as of September 1, 2016 (the “Supplemental Lease”), between the City 

and the Company; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested and the City has agreed to amend the legal descriptions 

attached to the Base Lease, as supplemented by the Supplemental Base Lease, the Lease Agreement, as 

supplemented by the Supplemental Lease Agreement, and the Performance Agreement; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. Second Supplemental Base Lease.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the form 

of the Second Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (the “Second Supplemental Base Lease”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 



2 

 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Second Supplemental Base Lease for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City. 

The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the Second Supplemental Base Lease. 

 

 Section 2.  Second Supplemental Lease Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the 

form of the Second Supplemental Lease Agreement (the “Second Supplemental Lease Agreement”), in 

substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this 

meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The 

Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Second Supplemental Lease 

Agreement for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and 

reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and 

affix the seal of the City, if required, to the Second Supplemental Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 3. First Amendment to Performance Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the First Amendment to Performance Agreement (the “First Amendment to Performance 

Agreement”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of 

the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Amendment to 

Performance Agreement for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form 

presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed 

to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 4. Further Authority.  The City shall, and the officers, employees and agents of the City 

are hereby authorized and directed to, take such action, expend such funds and execute such other documents, 

certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this 

Resolution and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the City with respect to the First Supplemental 

Base Lease, First Supplemental Lease Agreement and First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after its 

adoption by the City Council.  

 

 



3 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

(Seal)       Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XIV, LLC Project 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17O 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE ASSIGNMENT OF A BASE 

LEASE, LEASE AGREEMENT AND OTHER BOND DOCUMENTS IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS 

(ELHC XIV, LLC PROJECT), SERIES 2015, AND AUTHORIZING A 

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT, ESTOPPEL AND SUBORDINATION 

AGREEMENT 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”) is a duly organized and existing 

municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City issued its Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XIV, LLC Project), Series 

2015 (the “Series 2015 Bonds”), in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $38,000,000, pursuant to 

a Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 2015 (the “Indenture”), between the City and UMB Bank, n.a., 

as trustee (the “Trustee”), for the purpose of acquiring, purchasing, improving, equipping and 

constructing a commercial project, consisting of an approximately 822,500 sq. ft. warehouse and 

distribution facility, located at 19451 and 19535 Waverly Road, Edgerton, Kansas (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City issued its Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XIV, LLC Project), Series 

2016 (the “Series 2016 Bonds”), in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $25,000,000, pursuant to 

a First Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of September 1, 2015 (the “First Supplemental Indenture”), 

between the City and the Trustee, for the purpose of completing the improving and equipping of the 

Project; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Project was leased by ELHC XIV, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company 

(“ELHC”), to the City pursuant to a Base Lease Agreement dated as of December 1, 2015, as 

supplemented and amended by a First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement dated as of September 1, 

2016, and as further supplemented and amended by a Second Supplemental Base Lease Agreement 

(collectively, the “Base Lease”), between ELHC and the City, and the Project was subleased by the City 

to ELHC pursuant to a Lease Agreement dated as of December 1, 2015, as supplemented and amended by 

a First Supplemental Lease Agreement dated as of September 1, 2016, and as further supplemented and 

amended by a Second Supplemental Lease Agreement (collectively, the “Lease Agreement”), between the 

City and the Assignor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Base Lease and Section 13.1 of the Lease 

Agreement, the Assignor may assign the Base Lease and the Lease Agreement only with the written 

consent of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Assignor is requesting the City’s consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s 

interest under the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, First Supplemental Indenture, the 

Performance Agreement dated as of December 1, 2015 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City 

and Assignor, the Origination Fee Agreement dated as of December 1, 2015 (the “Origination Fee 

Agreement”), between the City and the Assignor, the Bond Purchase Agreement dated December 14, 

2015 relating to the Series 2015 Bonds (the “Series 2015 Bond Purchase Agreement”), among the City, 

the Assignor, as purchaser, and the Assignor, as the company, the Bond Purchase Agreement dated 

September 26, 2016 relating to the Series 2016 Bonds (the “Series 2016 Bond Purchase Agreement”), 

among the City, the Assignor, as purchaser, and the Assignor, as the company, and all other documents 



2 

 

executed in connection with the Series 2015 Bonds and the Series 2016 Bonds that are included in the 

transcript of proceedings for the Series 2015 Bonds and the Series 2016 Bonds (collectively, the “Other 

Bond Documents”), to IPXIV Waverly LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Assignee”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s interest under the 

Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, First Supplemental Indenture, Performance Agreement, 

Origination Fee Agreement, the Series 2015 Bond Purchase Agreement, the Series 2016 Bond Purchase 

Agreement and the Other Bond Documents to the Assignee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in connection with the assignment, Assignee has requested that the City deliver a 

collateral assignment, an estoppel and a subordination agreement, and the City desires to approve such 

documents; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body of the City hereby consents to the 

assignment of the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, First Supplemental Indenture, Performance 

Agreement, Origination Fee Agreement, Series 2015 Bond Purchase Agreement, Series 2016 Bond 

Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents by the Assignor to the Assignee.  The foregoing 

consents are contingent upon the satisfaction of all other requirements for assignments expressly set forth 

in the Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 2. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body 

hereby approves of the form of the Assignment and Assumption of IRB Documents (the “Assignment”), in 

substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at 

this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the consent to the 

Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to 

and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to 

attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the Assignment. 

 

 Section 3. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Collateral Assignment.  The 

Governing Body hereby approves of the form of the City consent to Collateral Assignment of IRB 

Documents (the “Collateral Assignment”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented 

to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution 

thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute and deliver the consent to the Collateral Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act 

and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The 

City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the consent to the Collateral Assignment. 

 

 Section 4. Authorization and Execution of Estoppel.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Consent, Agreement and Estoppel Certificate (the “Estoppel”), in substantially 

the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting 

(a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The 

Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Estoppel for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 



3 

 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Estoppel. 

 

 Section 5. Authorization and Execution of Subordination.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Subordination/Attornment Agreement (the “Subordination”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a 

copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor 

of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Subordination for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Subordination. 

 

 Section 6. Further Authority. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

deliver such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out 

and comply with the intent of this Resolution (copies of said documents shall be filed in the records of the 

City) for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and 

directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City to such other documents, certificates and instruments as 

may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately 

after its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XIV, LLC Project 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17P 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO A FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL BASE 

LEASE, FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT AND FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (ELHC XV, LLC 

PROJECT), SERIES 2016 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and develop the 

general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and to further promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the state of Kansas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons or entities; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has previously issued its $25,200,000 Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XV, 

LLC Project), Series 2016 (the “Bonds”), for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, installing and equipping a 

548,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “Project”) for the benefit of ELHC XV, LLC, a Kansas 

limited liability company (the “Company”); 

 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the City entered into, among other 

documents, (a) a Base Lease Agreement dated as of  January 1, 2016 (the “Base Lease”), between the 

Company and the City, whereby the Company leased certain land to the City on which the Project would be 

constructed, (b) a Lease Agreement dated as of January 1, 2016 (the “Lease Agreement”), between the City 

and the Company, whereby the City leased the Project to the Company, and (c) a Performance Agreement 

dated as of January 1, 2016 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and the Company, whereby the 

parties agreed to the terms of the real property tax abatement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested and the City has agreed to amend the legal descriptions 

attached to the Base Lease, Lease Agreement and Performance Agreement; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. First Supplemental Base Lease.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the form of 

the First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Base Lease”), in substantially the form 

attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Base Lease for and on behalf of and 

as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  

The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the First Supplemental Base Lease. 

 

 Section 2.  First Supplemental Lease Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the 

form of the First Supplemental Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Lease Agreement”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 



2 

 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Lease Agreement for and on behalf 

of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if 

required, to the First Supplemental Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 3. First Amendment to Performance Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the First Amendment to Performance Agreement (the “First Amendment to Performance 

Agreement”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of 

the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Amendment to 

Performance Agreement for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form 

presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed 

to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 4. Further Authority.  The City shall, and the officers, employees and agents of the City 

are hereby authorized and directed to, take such action, expend such funds and execute such other documents, 

certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this 

Resolution and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the City with respect to the First Amendment 

to Base Lease, First Amendment to Lease Agreement and First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after its 

adoption by the City Council.  

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

(Seal)       Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XV, LLC Project 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17Q 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE ASSIGNMENT OF A BASE 

LEASE, LEASE AGREEMENT AND OTHER BOND DOCUMENTS IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS 

(ELHC XV, LLC PROJECT), SERIES 2016, AND AUTHORIZING A 

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT, ESTOPPEL AND SUBORDINATION 

AGREEMENT 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”) is a duly organized and existing 

municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City issued its Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XV, LLC Project), Series 2016 

(the “Bonds”), in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $25,200,000, pursuant to a Trust Indenture 

dated as of January 1, 2016 (the “Indenture”), between the City and UMB Bank, n.a., as trustee (the 

“Trustee”), for the purpose of acquiring, purchasing, improving, equipping and constructing a commercial 

project, consisting of an approximately 548,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility, located at 19351 

Montrose Street, Edgerton, Kansas (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Project was leased by ELHC XV, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company 

(“ELHC”), to the City pursuant to a Base Lease Agreement dated as of January 1, 2016, as supplemented 

and amended by a First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (together, the “Base Lease”), between 

ELHC and the City, and the Project was subleased by the City to ELHC pursuant to a Lease Agreement 

dated as of January 1, 2016, as supplemented and amended by a First Supplemental Lease Agreement 

(together, the “Lease Agreement”), between the City and the Assignor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Base Lease and Section 13.1 of the Lease 

Agreement, the Assignor may assign the Base Lease and the Lease Agreement only with the written 

consent of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Assignor is requesting the City’s consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s 

interest under the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, the Performance Agreement dated as of 

January 1, 2016 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and Assignor, the Origination Fee 

Agreement dated as of January 1, 2016 (the “Origination Fee Agreement”), between the City and the 

Assignor, the Bond Purchase Agreement dated January 18, 2016 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), 

among the City, the Assignor, as purchaser, and the Assignor, as the company, and all other documents 

executed in connection with the Bonds that are included in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds 

(collectively, the “Other Bond Documents”), to IPXV Montrose LLC, a Delaware limited liability 

company (the “Assignee”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s interest under the 

Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee Agreement, the Bond 

Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents to the Assignee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in connection with the assignment, Assignee has requested that the City deliver a 

collateral assignment, an estoppel and a subordination agreement, and the City desires to approve such 

documents; 
 



2 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body of the City hereby consents to the 

assignment of the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee 

Agreement, Bond Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents by the Assignor to the Assignee.  

The foregoing consents are contingent upon the satisfaction of all other requirements for assignments 

expressly set forth in the Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 2. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body 

hereby approves of the form of the Assignment and Assumption of IRB Documents (the “Assignment”), in 

substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at 

this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the consent to the 

Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to 

and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to 

attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the Assignment. 

 

 Section 3. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Collateral Assignment.  The 

Governing Body hereby approves of the form of the City consent to Collateral Assignment of IRB 

Documents (the “Collateral Assignment”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented 

to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution 

thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute and deliver the consent to the Collateral Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act 

and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The 

City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the consent to the Collateral Assignment. 

 

 Section 4. Authorization and Execution of Estoppel.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Consent, Agreement and Estoppel Certificate (the “Estoppel”), in substantially 

the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting 

(a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The 

Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Estoppel for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Estoppel. 

 

 Section 5. Authorization and Execution of Subordination.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Subordination/Attornment Agreement (the “Subordination”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a 

copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor 

of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Subordination for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Subordination. 

 

 Section 6. Further Authority. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

deliver such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out 

and comply with the intent of this Resolution (copies of said documents shall be filed in the records of the 



3 

 

City) for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and 

directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City to such other documents, certificates and instruments as 

may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately 

after its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XV, LLC Project 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17R 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO A FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL BASE 

LEASE, FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT AND FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (ELHC XXXI, LLC 

PROJECT), SERIES 2016 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and develop the 

general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and to further promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the state of Kansas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons or entities; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has previously issued its $26,500,000 Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XXXI, 

LLC Project), Series 2016 (the “Bonds”), for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, installing and equipping a 

378,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “Project”) for the benefit of ELHC XXXI, LLC, a 

Kansas limited liability company (the “Company”); 

 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the City entered into, among other 

documents, (a) a Base Lease Agreement dated as of  August 1, 2016 (the “Base Lease”), between the Company 

and the City, whereby the Company leased certain land to the City on which the Project would be constructed, 

(b) a Lease Agreement dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Lease Agreement”), between the City and the 

Company, whereby the City leased the Project to the Company, and (c) a Performance Agreement dated as of 

August 1, 2016 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and the Company, whereby the parties 

agreed to the terms of the real property tax abatement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested and the City has agreed to amend the legal descriptions 

attached to the Base Lease, Lease Agreement and Performance Agreement; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. First Supplemental Base Lease.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the form of 

the First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Base Lease”), in substantially the form 

attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Base Lease for and on behalf of and 

as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  

The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the First Supplemental Base Lease. 

 

 Section 2.  First Supplemental Lease Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the 

form of the First Supplemental Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Lease Agreement”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 



2 

 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Lease Agreement for and on behalf 

of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if 

required, to the First Supplemental Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 3. First Amendment to Performance Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the First Amendment to Performance Agreement (the “First Amendment to Performance 

Agreement”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of 

the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Amendment to 

Performance Agreement for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form 

presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed 

to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 4. Further Authority.  The City shall, and the officers, employees and agents of the City 

are hereby authorized and directed to, take such action, expend such funds and execute such other documents, 

certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this 

Resolution and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the City with respect to the First Amendment 

to Base Lease, First Amendment to Lease Agreement and First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after its 

adoption by the City Council.  

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

(Seal)       Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XXXI, LLC Project 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17S 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE ASSIGNMENT OF A BASE 

LEASE, LEASE AGREEMENT AND OTHER BOND DOCUMENTS IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS 

(ELHC XXXI, LLC PROJECT), SERIES 2016, AND AUTHORIZING A 

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT, ESTOPPEL AND SUBORDINATION 

AGREEMENT 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”) is a duly organized and existing 

municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City issued its Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XXXI, LLC Project), Series 

2016 (the “Bonds”), in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $26,500,000, pursuant to a Trust 

Indenture dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Indenture”), between the City and UMB Bank, n.a., as trustee 

(the “Trustee”), for the purpose of acquiring, purchasing, improving, equipping and constructing a 

commercial project, consisting of an approximately 378,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility, 

located at 31800 W. 196th Street, Edgerton, Kansas (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Project was leased by ELHC XXXI, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company 

(“ELHC”), to the City pursuant to a Base Lease Agreement dated as of August 1, 2016, as supplemented 

and amended by a First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (together, the “Base Lease”), between 

ELHC and the City, and the Project was subleased by the City to ELHC pursuant to a Lease Agreement 

dated as of August 1, 2016, as supplemented and amended by a First Supplemental Lease Agreement 

(together, the “Lease Agreement”), between the City and the Assignor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Base Lease and Section 13.1 of the Lease 

Agreement, the Assignor may assign the Base Lease and the Lease Agreement only with the written 

consent of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Assignor is requesting the City’s consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s 

interest under the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, the Performance Agreement dated as of 

August 1, 2016 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and Assignor, the Origination Fee 

Agreement dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Origination Fee Agreement”), between the City and the 

Assignor, the Bond Purchase Agreement dated August 1, 2016 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), among 

the City, the Assignor, as purchaser, and the Assignor, as the company, and all other documents executed 

in connection with the Bonds that are included in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds (collectively, 

the “Other Bond Documents”), to IPXXXI 196 Street LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the 

“Assignee”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s interest under the 

Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee Agreement, the Bond 

Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents to the Assignee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in connection with the assignment, Assignee has requested that the City deliver a 

collateral assignment, an estoppel and a subordination agreement, and the City desires to approve such 

documents; 
 



2 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body of the City hereby consents to the 

assignment of the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee 

Agreement, Bond Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents by the Assignor to the Assignee.  

The foregoing consents are contingent upon the satisfaction of all other requirements for assignments 

expressly set forth in the Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 2. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body 

hereby approves of the form of the Assignment and Assumption of IRB Documents (the “Assignment”), in 

substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at 

this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the consent to the 

Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to 

and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to 

attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the Assignment. 

 

 Section 3. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Collateral Assignment.  The 

Governing Body hereby approves of the form of the City consent to Collateral Assignment of IRB 

Documents (the “Collateral Assignment”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented 

to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution 

thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute and deliver the consent to the Collateral Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act 

and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The 

City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the consent to the Collateral Assignment. 

 

 Section 4. Authorization and Execution of Estoppel.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Consent, Agreement and Estoppel Certificate (the “Estoppel”), in substantially 

the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting 

(a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The 

Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Estoppel for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Estoppel. 

 

 Section 5. Authorization and Execution of Subordination.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Subordination/Attornment Agreement (the “Subordination”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a 

copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor 

of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Subordination for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Subordination. 

 

 Section 6. Further Authority. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

deliver such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out 

and comply with the intent of this Resolution (copies of said documents shall be filed in the records of the 



3 

 

City) for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and 

directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City to such other documents, certificates and instruments as 

may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately 

after its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XXXI, LLC Project 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17T 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO A FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL BASE 

LEASE, FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT AND FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (ELHC XXXII, LLC 

PROJECT), SERIES 2016 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and develop the 

general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and to further promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the state of Kansas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons or entities; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has previously issued its $38,250,000 Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XXXII, 

LLC Project), Series 2016 (the “Bonds”), for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, installing and equipping a 

765,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “Project”) for the benefit of ELHC XXXII, LLC, a 

Kansas limited liability company (the “Company”); 

 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the City entered into, among other 

documents, (a) a Base Lease Agreement dated as of  August 1, 2016 (the “Base Lease”), between the Company 

and the City, whereby the Company leased certain land to the City on which the Project would be constructed, 

(b) a Lease Agreement dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Lease Agreement”), between the City and the 

Company, whereby the City leased the Project to the Company, and (c) a Performance Agreement dated as of 

August 1, 2016 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and the Company, whereby the parties 

agreed to the terms of the real property tax abatement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested and the City has agreed to amend the legal descriptions 

attached to the Base Lease, Lease Agreement and Performance Agreement; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. First Supplemental Base Lease.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the form of 

the First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Base Lease”), in substantially the form 

attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Base Lease for and on behalf of and 

as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  

The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the First Supplemental Base Lease. 

 

 Section 2.  First Supplemental Lease Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the 

form of the First Supplemental Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Lease Agreement”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 



2 

 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Lease Agreement for and on behalf 

of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if 

required, to the First Supplemental Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 3. First Amendment to Performance Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the First Amendment to Performance Agreement (the “First Amendment to Performance 

Agreement”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of 

the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Amendment to 

Performance Agreement for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form 

presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed 

to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 4. Further Authority.  The City shall, and the officers, employees and agents of the City 

are hereby authorized and directed to, take such action, expend such funds and execute such other documents, 

certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this 

Resolution and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the City with respect to the First Amendment 

to Base Lease, First Amendment to Lease Agreement and First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after its 

adoption by the City Council.  

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

(Seal)       Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XXXII, LLC Project 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17U 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE ASSIGNMENT OF A BASE 

LEASE, LEASE AGREEMENT AND OTHER BOND DOCUMENTS IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS 

(ELHC XXXII, LLC PROJECT), SERIES 2016, AND AUTHORIZING A 

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT, ESTOPPEL AND SUBORDINATION 

AGREEMENT 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”) is a duly organized and existing 

municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City issued its Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XXXII, LLC Project), Series 

2016 (the “Bonds”), in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $38,250,000, pursuant to a Trust 

Indenture dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Indenture”), between the City and UMB Bank, n.a., as trustee 

(the “Trustee”), for the purpose of acquiring, purchasing, improving, equipping and constructing a 

commercial project, consisting of an approximately 765,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility, 

located at 31450 W. 196th Street, Edgerton, Kansas (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Project was leased by ELHC XXXII, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company 

(“ELHC”), to the City pursuant to a Base Lease Agreement dated as of August 1, 2016, as supplemented 

and amended by a First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (together, the “Base Lease”), between 

ELHC and the City, and the Project was subleased by the City to ELHC pursuant to a Lease Agreement 

dated as of August 1, 2016, as supplemented and amended by a First Supplemental Lease Agreement 

(together, the “Lease Agreement”), between the City and the Assignor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Base Lease and Section 13.1 of the Lease 

Agreement, the Assignor may assign the Base Lease and the Lease Agreement only with the written 

consent of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Assignor is requesting the City’s consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s 

interest under the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, the Performance Agreement dated as of 

August 1, 2016 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and Assignor, the Origination Fee 

Agreement dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Origination Fee Agreement”), between the City and the 

Assignor, the Bond Purchase Agreement dated August 15, 2016 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), 

among the City, the Assignor, as purchaser, and the Assignor, as the company, and all other documents 

executed in connection with the Bonds that are included in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds 

(collectively, the “Other Bond Documents”), to IPXXXII 196 Street LLC, a Delaware limited liability 

company (the “Assignee”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s interest under the 

Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee Agreement, the Bond 

Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents to the Assignee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in connection with the assignment, Assignee has requested that the City deliver a 

collateral assignment, an estoppel and a subordination agreement, and the City desires to approve such 

documents; 
 



2 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body of the City hereby consents to the 

assignment of the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee 

Agreement, Bond Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents by the Assignor to the Assignee.  

The foregoing consents are contingent upon the satisfaction of all other requirements for assignments 

expressly set forth in the Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 2. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body 

hereby approves of the form of the Assignment and Assumption of IRB Documents (the “Assignment”), in 

substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at 

this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the consent to the 

Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to 

and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to 

attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the Assignment. 

 

 Section 3. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Collateral Assignment.  The 

Governing Body hereby approves of the form of the City consent to Collateral Assignment of IRB 

Documents (the “Collateral Assignment”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented 

to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution 

thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute and deliver the consent to the Collateral Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act 

and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The 

City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the consent to the Collateral Assignment. 

 

 Section 4. Authorization and Execution of Estoppel.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Consent, Agreement and Estoppel Certificate (the “Estoppel”), in substantially 

the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting 

(a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The 

Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Estoppel for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Estoppel. 

 

 Section 5. Authorization and Execution of Subordination.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Subordination/Attornment Agreement (the “Subordination”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a 

copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor 

of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Subordination for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Subordination. 

 

 Section 6. Further Authority. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

deliver such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out 

and comply with the intent of this Resolution (copies of said documents shall be filed in the records of the 



3 

 

City) for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and 

directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City to such other documents, certificates and instruments as 

may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately 

after its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XXXII, LLC Project 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17V 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO A FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL BASE 

LEASE, FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL LEASE AGREEMENT AND FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION 

WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (ELHC XXXIII, LLC 

PROJECT), SERIES 2016 

__________________________________________________________________ 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and develop the 

general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and to further promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the state of Kansas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons or entities; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has previously issued its $46,350,000 Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XXXIII, 

LLC Project), Series 2016 (the “Bonds”), for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, installing and equipping a 

927,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “Project”) for the benefit of ELHC XXXIII, LLC, a 

Kansas limited liability company (the “Company”); 

 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the City entered into, among other 

documents, (a) a Base Lease Agreement dated as of  August 1, 2016 (the “Base Lease”), between the Company 

and the City, whereby the Company leased certain land to the City on which the Project would be constructed, 

(b) a Lease Agreement dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Lease Agreement”), between the City and the 

Company, whereby the City leased the Project to the Company, and (c) a Performance Agreement dated as of 

August 1, 2016 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and the Company, whereby the parties 

agreed to the terms of the real property tax abatement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested and the City has agreed to amend the legal descriptions 

attached to the Base Lease, Lease Agreement and Performance Agreement; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. First Supplemental Base Lease.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the form of 

the First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Base Lease”), in substantially the form 

attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Base Lease for and on behalf of and 

as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  

The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the First Supplemental Base Lease. 

 

 Section 2.  First Supplemental Lease Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby approves of the 

form of the First Supplemental Lease Agreement (the “First Supplemental Lease Agreement”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of 



2 

 

which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Supplemental Lease Agreement for and on behalf 

of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if 

required, to the First Supplemental Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 3. First Amendment to Performance Agreement.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the First Amendment to Performance Agreement (the “First Amendment to Performance 

Agreement”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of 

the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the First Amendment to 

Performance Agreement for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form 

presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed 

to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 4. Further Authority.  The City shall, and the officers, employees and agents of the City 

are hereby authorized and directed to, take such action, expend such funds and execute such other documents, 

certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this 

Resolution and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the City with respect to the First Amendment 

to Base Lease, First Amendment to Lease Agreement and First Amendment to Performance Agreement. 

 

 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after its 

adoption by the City Council.  

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

(Seal)       Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XXXIII, LLC Project 



RESOLUTION NO. 04-27-17W 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE ASSIGNMENT OF A BASE 

LEASE, LEASE AGREEMENT AND OTHER BOND DOCUMENTS IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS 

(ELHC XXXIII, LLC PROJECT), SERIES 2016, AND AUTHORIZING A 

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT, ESTOPPEL AND SUBORDINATION 

AGREEMENT 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”) is a duly organized and existing 

municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City issued its Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC XXXIII, LLC Project), Series 

2016 (the “Bonds”), in the aggregate maximum principal amount of $46,350,000, pursuant to a Trust 

Indenture dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Indenture”), between the City and UMB Bank, n.a., as trustee 

(the “Trustee”), for the purpose of acquiring, purchasing, improving, equipping and constructing a 

commercial project, consisting of an approximately 927,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility, 

located at 31100 W. 196th Street, Edgerton, Kansas (the “Project”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Project was leased by ELHC XXXIII, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company 

(“ELHC”), to the City pursuant to a Base Lease Agreement dated as of August 1, 2016, as supplemented 

and amended by a First Supplemental Base Lease Agreement (together, the “Base Lease”), between 

ELHC and the City, and the Project was subleased by the City to ELHC pursuant to a Lease Agreement 

dated as of August 1, 2016, as supplemented and amended by a First Supplemental Lease Agreement 

(together, the “Lease Agreement”), between the City and the Assignor; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 6.2 of the Base Lease and Section 13.1 of the Lease 

Agreement, the Assignor may assign the Base Lease and the Lease Agreement only with the written 

consent of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Assignor is requesting the City’s consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s 

interest under the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, the Performance Agreement dated as of 

August 1, 2016 (the “Performance Agreement”), between the City and Assignor, the Origination Fee 

Agreement dated as of August 1, 2016 (the “Origination Fee Agreement”), between the City and the 

Assignor, the Bond Purchase Agreement dated August 15, 2016 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), 

among the City, the Assignor, as purchaser, and the Assignor, as the company, and all other documents 

executed in connection with the Bonds that are included in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds 

(collectively, the “Other Bond Documents”), to IPXXXIII 196 Street LLC, a Delaware limited liability 

company (the “Assignee”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to the assignment of the Assignor’s interest under the 

Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee Agreement, the Bond 

Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents to the Assignee; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in connection with the assignment, Assignee has requested that the City deliver a 

collateral assignment, an estoppel and a subordination agreement, and the City desires to approve such 

documents; 
 



2 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body of the City hereby consents to the 

assignment of the Base Lease, Lease Agreement, Indenture, Performance Agreement, Origination Fee 

Agreement, Bond Purchase Agreement and the Other Bond Documents by the Assignor to the Assignee.  

The foregoing consents are contingent upon the satisfaction of all other requirements for assignments 

expressly set forth in the Lease Agreement. 

 

 Section 2. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Assignment.  The Governing Body 

hereby approves of the form of the Assignment and Assumption of IRB Documents (the “Assignment”), in 

substantially the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at 

this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City 

Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the consent to the 

Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to 

and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to 

attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, to the Assignment. 

 

 Section 3. Authorization and Execution of Consent to Collateral Assignment.  The 

Governing Body hereby approves of the form of the City consent to Collateral Assignment of IRB 

Documents (the “Collateral Assignment”), in substantially the form attached to the item summary presented 

to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a copy of which document, upon execution 

thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and 

directed to execute and deliver the consent to the Collateral Assignment for and on behalf of and as the act 

and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City.  The 

City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, if required, 

to the consent to the Collateral Assignment. 

 

 Section 4. Authorization and Execution of Estoppel.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Consent, Agreement and Estoppel Certificate (the “Estoppel”), in substantially 

the form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting 

(a copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The 

Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Estoppel for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Estoppel. 

 

 Section 5. Authorization and Execution of Subordination.  The Governing Body hereby 

approves of the form of the Subordination/Attornment Agreement (the “Subordination”), in substantially the 

form attached to the item summary presented to and reviewed by the Council of the City at this meeting (a 

copy of which document, upon execution thereof, shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk).  The Mayor 

of the City is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Subordination for and on behalf of 

and as the act and deed of the City, in substantially the form presented to and reviewed by the Council of the 

City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City, 

if required, to the Subordination. 

 

 Section 6. Further Authority. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

deliver such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out 

and comply with the intent of this Resolution (copies of said documents shall be filed in the records of the 



3 

 

City) for and on behalf of and as the act and deed of the City. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and 

directed to attest to and affix the seal of the City to such other documents, certificates and instruments as 

may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately 

after its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 27th day of April, 2017. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL]        Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Assignment Resolution 
ELHC XXXIII, LLC Project 

 


	Minutes 04-13-2017

	Easements from Quarry for EWWTP project

	Easements for West 8th St Sidewalk

	Final Plat FP2016-04, Midwest Gateway

	Resolution No. 04-27-17A Assignment Resolution ELHC VI

	Resolution No. 04-27-17B Assignment Resolution ELHC IX

	Resolution No. 04-27-17C Assignment Resolution ELHC XXI

	Resolution No. 04-27-17D Assignment Resolution Coldpoint

	Information for Assignment of Lease Agreements

	Information for First Amendments

	Resolution No. 04-27-17E

	Resolution No. 04-27-17F

	Resolution No. 04-27-17G

	Resolution No. 04-27-17H

	Resolution No. 04-27-17I

	Resolution No. 04-27-17J

	Resolution No. 04-27-17K

	Resolution No. 04-27-17L

	Resolution No. 04-27-17M

	Resolution No. 04-27-17N

	Resolution No. 04-27-17O

	Resolution No. 04-27-17P

	Resolution No. 04-27-17Q

	Resolution No. 04-27-17R

	Resolution No. 04-27-17S

	Resolution No. 04-27-17T

	Resolution No. 04-27-17U

	Resolution No. 04-27-17V

	Resolution No. 04-27-17W


